
 

 

 
 

 Neuadd y Cyngor 
Y Rhadyr 

Brynbuga 
NP15 1GA 

 
Dydd Llun, 26 Chwefror 2024 

 

Hysbysiad o gyfarfod 

 

Pwyllgor Cynllunio 
 

Dydd Mawrth, 5ed Mawrth, 2024, 2.00 pm 
Neuadd Y Sir, Y Rhadyr, Brynbuga, NP15 1GA 

 

AGENDA 
 

Eitem 
Ddim 

Eitem Tudallenau 
 

1.   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 

 
 

2.   Datganiadau o Fuddiant. 

 
 

3.   Cadarnhau cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol. 

 
1 - 4 

4.   I ystyried yr adroddiadau Cais Cynllunio canlynol gan y Prif 
Swyddog, Cymunedau a Lle (copïau ynghlwm): 

 

 

4.1.   Cais DM/2020/00400 - Adeiladu trac beicio ffordd caeedig 1 cilomedr, 
mynediad i gerbydau a maes parcio. Tir ger y Cae Rasys, Fferm a 
Gorsaf Drosglwyddo Gwastraff Llan-ffwyst, Y Fenni NP7 9LQ. 

 

5 - 36 

4.2.   Cais DM/2023/01329 - Caniatawyd newid Defnydd Glebe Bungalow i 
dŷ annedd C3 o Randy Gwyliau ar osod a ganiatawyd dan 
DC/2007/00778 a DC/2017/01200. Glebe Bungalow, Heol Ysgol 
Llandeilo, Llandeilo Bertholau, Y Fenni, NP7 6NU. 

 

37 - 44 

5.   ER GWYBODAETH - Yr Arolygiaeth Gynllunio - Penderfyniadau o ran 
Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd: 

 

 

5.1.   The Cedars, Lôn y Capel, Pwllmeurig. 

 
45 - 48 

 
Paul Matthews 

 
Prif Weithredwr 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

CYNGOR SIR FYNWY 
 

MAE CYFANSODDIAD Y PWYLLGOR FEL SY'N DILYN: 
 
 
Cynghorwyr Sir: Jill Bond 

Fay Bromfield 
Emma Bryn 
Sara Burch 
Jan Butler 
John Crook 
Tony Easson 
Steven Garratt 
Meirion Howells 
Su McConnel 
Jayne McKenna 
Phil Murphy 
Maureen Powell 
Sue Riley 
Dale Rooke 
Ann Webb 

 
Gwybodaeth Gyhoeddus 
 
Bydd rhaid I unrhyw person sydd eisiau siarad yn Y Pwyllgor Cynllunio cofrestru 
gyda Gwasanaethau Democrataidd erbyn  hanner dydd  ar diwrnod cyn y cyfarfod. 
Mae manylion ynglŷn a siarad yn cyhoeddus ar gael tu fewn I’r agenda neu yma   
Protocol ar gyfraniadau gan y cyhoedd mewn Pwyllgorau Cynllunio 

 
Mynediad i gopïau papur o agendâu ac adroddiadau 
Gellir darparu copi o'r agenda hwn ac adroddiadau perthnasol i aelodau'r cyhoedd sy'n 
mynychu cyfarfod drwy ofyn am gopi gan Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01633 644219. 
Dylid nodi fod yn rhaid i ni dderbyn 24 awr o hysbysiad cyn y cyfarfod er mwyn darparu 
copi caled o'r agenda hwn i chi. 
 
Edrych ar y cyfarfod ar-lein 
Gellir gweld y cyfarfod ar-lein yn fyw neu'n dilyn y cyfarfod drwy fynd i 
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk neu drwy ymweld â'n tudalen Youtube drwy chwilio am 
MonmouthshireCC. Drwy fynd i mewn i'r ystafell gyfarfod, fel aelod o'r cyhoedd neu i 
gymryd rhan yn y cyfarfod, rydych yn caniatáu i gael eich ffilmio ac i ddefnydd posibl y 
delweddau a'r recordiadau sain hynny gan y Cyngor. 
 
Y Gymraeg 
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawu cyfraniadau gan aelodau'r cyhoedd drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg 
neu'r Saesneg. Gofynnwn gyda dyledus barch i chi roi 5 diwrnod o hysbysiad cyn y 
cyfarfod os dymunwch siarad yn Gymraeg fel y gallwn ddarparu ar gyfer eich anghenion. 

http://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/documents/s4204/PublicSpeakingDocumentWelsh.docx.pdf
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/


 

 

Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy 
 

Ein Pwrpas 
 
• i ddod yn sir ddi-garbon, gan gefnogi lles, iechyd ac urddas i bawb ar bob cam o'u 
bywydau. 
 
Amcanion rydym yn gweithio tuag atynt  
 
• Lle teg i fyw lle mae effeithiau anghydraddoldeb a thlodi wedi'u lleihau;  
• Lle gwyrdd i fyw a gweithio gyda llai o allyriadau carbon a gwneud cyfraniad cadarnhaol at 

fynd i'r afael â'r argyfwng yn yr hinsawdd a natur;  
• Lle ffyniannus ac uchelgeisiol, lle mae canol trefi bywiog a lle gall busnesau dyfu a 

datblygu;  
• Lle diogel i fyw lle mae gan bobl gartref maen nhw'n teimlo'n ddiogel ynddo;  
• Lle cysylltiedig lle mae pobl yn teimlo'n rhan o gymuned ac yn cael eu gwerthfawrogi;   
• Lle dysgu lle mae pawb yn cael cyfle i gyrraedd eu potensial.          
 
Ein gwerthoedd 
 

 Bod yn agored: anelwn fod yn agored ac onest i ddatblygu perthnasoedd ymddiriedus 

 Tegwch: anelwn ddarparu dewis teg, cyfleoedd a phrofiadau a dod yn sefydliad a 
adeiladwyd ar barch un at y llall. 

 Hyblygrwydd: anelwn fod yn hyblyg yn ein syniadau a'n gweithredoedd i ddod yn sefydliad 
effeithlon ac effeithiol. 

 Gwaith tîm: anelwn gydweithio i rannu ein llwyddiannau a'n methiannau drwy adeiladu ar 
ein cryfderau a chefnogi ein gilydd i gyflawni ein nodau. 

 Caredigrwydd – Byddwn yn dangos caredigrwydd i bawb yr ydym yn gweithio gyda nhw, 
gan roi pwysigrwydd perthnasoedd a’r cysylltiadau sydd gennym â’n gilydd wrth wraidd pob 
rhyngweithio. 



 

 

Diben 
 
Diben yr adroddiadau a atodir a'r cyflwyniad cysylltiedig gan swyddogion i'r Pwyllgor yw galluogi'r 
Pwyllgor Cynllunio i wneud penderfyniad ar bob cais yn y rhestr a atodir, ar ôl pwyso a mesur y 
gwahanol ystyriaethau cynllunio perthnasol. 
 
Dirprwywyd pwerau i'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio wneud penderfyniadau ar geisiadau cynllunio. Mae'r 
adroddiadau a gynhwysir yn yr atodlen yma'n asesu’r datblygiad arfaethedig yn erbyn polisi 
cynllunio perthnasol ac ystyriaethau cynllunio eraill perthnasol, a rhoi ystyriaeth i'r holl ymatebion 
ymgynghori a dderbyniwyd. Daw pob adroddiad i ben gydag argymhelliad swyddog i'r Pwyllgor 
Cynllunio ar p'un ai yw swyddogion yn ystyried y dylid rhoi caniatâd cynllunio (gydag awgrym am 
amodau cynllunio lle'n briodol) neu ei wrthod (gydag awgrymiadau am resymau dros wrthod). 
 
Dan Adran 38(6) Deddf Cynllunio a Phrynu Gorfodol 2004, mae'n rhaid i bob cais cynllunio gael eu 
penderfynu yn unol â Chynllun Datblygu Lleol Sir Fynwy 2011-2021 (a fabwysiadwyd yn Chwefror 
2014), os nad yw ystyriaethau cynllunio perthnasol yn awgrymu fel arall. 
 
Disgwylir i'r holl benderfyniadau a wneir fod o fudd i'r Sir a'n cymunedau drwy ganiatáu datblygu 
ansawdd da yn y lleoliadau cywir, ac ymwrthod â datblygiad amhriodol, ansawdd gwael neu yn y 
lleoliad anghywir. Mae cysylltiad uniongyrchol i amcan y Cyngor o adeiladu cymunedau cryf a 
chynaliadwy. 
 
Gwneud penderfyniadau 
 
Gellir cytuno ar geisiadau yn rhwym ar amodau cynllunio. Mae'n rhaid i amodau gyflawni'r holl feini 
prawf dilynol: 

 Angenrheidiol i wneud y datblygiad arfaethedig yn dderbyniol; 

 Perthnasol i ddeddfwriaeth cynllunio (h.y. ystyriaeth cynllunio); 

 Perthnasol i'r datblygiad arfaethedig dan sylw; 

 Manwl; 

 Gorfodadwy; a 

 Rhesymol ym mhob cyswllt arall. 
 
Gellir cytuno i geisiadau yn amodol ar gytundeb cyfreithiol dan Adran 106 Deddf Cynllunio Tref a 
Gwlad 1990 (fel y'i diwygiwyd). Mae hyn yn sicrhau goblygiadau cynllunio i wrthbwyso effeithiau'r 
datblygiad arfaethedig. Fodd bynnag, mae'n rhaid i'r goblygiadau cynllunio hyn gyflawni'r holl feini 
prawf dilynol er mwyn iddynt fod yn gyfreithlon: 

 Angenrheidiol i wneud y datblygiad yn dderbyniol mewn termau cynllunio; 

 Uniongyrchol gysylltiedig â'r datblygiad; ac 

 Wedi cysylltu'n deg ac yn rhesymol mewn maint a math i'r datblygiad. 
 
Mae gan yr ymgeisydd hawl apelio statudol yn erbyn gwrthod caniatâd yn y rhan fwyaf o achosion, 
neu yn erbyn gosod amodau cynllunio, neu yn erbyn methiant y Cyngor i benderfynu ar gais o 
fewn y cyfnod statudol. Nid oes unrhyw hawl apelio trydydd parti yn erbyn penderfyniad. 
 
Gall y Pwyllgor Cynllunio wneud argymhellion sy'n groes i argymhelliad y swyddog. Fodd bynnag, 
mae'n rhaid rhoi rhesymau am benderfyniadau o'r fath ac mae'n rhaid i'r penderfyniad fod yn 
seiliedig ar y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (LDP) a/neu ystyriaethau cynllunio perthnasol. Pe byddai 
penderfyniad o'r fath yn cael ei herio mewn apêl, bydd yn ofynnol i Aelodau Pwyllgor amddiffyn eu 
penderfyniad drwy'r broses apêl. 
 
Prif gyd-destun polisi 
 
Mae'r LDP yn cynnwys y prif bolisïau datblygu a dylunio. Yn hytrach nag ail-adrodd y rhain ar gyfer 
pob cais, caiff y geiriad llawn ei osod islaw er cymorth Aelodau. 
 
Polisi EP1 - Gwarchod Amwynderau a'r Amgylchedd 



 

 

Dylai datblygiad, yn cynnwys cynigion ar gyfer adeiladau newydd, estyniadau i adeiladau 
presennol a hysbysebion roi ystyriaeth i breifatrwydd, amwynder ac iechyd defnyddwyr adeiladau 
cyfagos. Ni chaniateir cynigion datblygu a fyddai'n achosi neu'n arwain at risg/niwed annerbyniol i 
amwynder lleol, iechyd, cymeriad/ansawdd cefn gwlad neu fuddiannau cadwraeth natur, tirlun neu 
bwysigrwydd treftadaeth adeiledig oherwydd y dilynol, os na fedrir dangos y gellir cymryd mesurau 
i oresgyn unrhyw risg sylweddol: 

- Llygredd aer; 
- Llygredd golau neu sŵn; 
- Llygredd dŵr; 
- Halogiad; 
- Ansefydlogrwydd tir; neu 
- Unrhyw risg a ddynodwyd i iechyd neu ddiogelwch y cyhoedd. 

 
Polisi DES1 – Ystyriaethau Dylunio Cyffredinol 
Dylai pob datblygiad fod o ddyluniad cynaliadwy ansawdd uchel a pharchu cymeriad lleol a 
nodweddion neilltuol amgylchedd adeiledig, hanesyddol a naturiol Sir Fynwy. Bydd yn ofynnol i 
gynigion datblygu: 

a) Sicrhau amgylchedd diogel, dymunol a chyfleus sy'n hygyrch i bob aelod o'r gymuned, yn 
cefnogi egwyddorion diogelwch y gymuned ac yn annog cerdded a seiclo; 

b) Cyfrannu tuag at naws o le wrth sicrhau fod maint y datblygiad a'i ddwyster yn gydnaws 
gyda defnyddiau presennol; 

c) Parchu ffurf, maint, lleoliad, casglu, deunyddiau  a gweddlun ei osodiad ac unrhyw 
adeiladau cyfagos o ansawdd; 

d) Cynnal lefelau rhesymol o breifatrwydd ac amwynder defnyddwyr adeiladau cyfagos, lle'n 
berthnasol; 

e) Parchu'r golygfeydd adeiledig a naturiol lle maent yn cynnwys nodweddion hanesyddol 
a/neu amgylchedd adeiledig neu dirlun deniadol neu neilltuol; 

f) Defnyddio technegau adeiladu, addurniad, arddulliau a golau i wella ymddangosiad y 
cynnig gan roi ystyriaeth i wead, lliw, patrwm, cadernid a saernïaeth mewn defnyddio 
deunyddiau; 

g) Ymgorffori a, lle'n bosibl, wella nodweddion presennol sydd o werth hanesyddol, gweledol 
neu gadwraeth natur a defnyddio'r traddodiad brodorol lle'n briodol; 

h) Cynnwys cynigion tirlun ar gyfer adeiladau newydd a defnyddiau tir fel eu bod yn 
integreiddio i'w hamgylchiadau, gan roi ystyriaeth i ymddangosiad y tirlun presennol a'i 
gymeriad cynhenid, fel y'i diffinnir drwy broses LANDMAP. Dylai tirlunio roi ystyriaeth i, a 
lle'n briodol gadw, coed a gwrychoedd presennol; 

i) Gwneud y defnydd mwyaf effeithiol o dir sy'n gydnaws gyda'r meini prawf uchod, yn 
cynnwys y dylai isafswm dwysedd net datblygiad preswyl fod yn 30 annedd fesul hectar, yn 
amodol ar faen prawf l) islaw; 

j) Sicrhau dyluniad sy'n ymateb i'r hinsawdd ac effeithiol o ran adnoddau. Dylid rhoi ystyriaeth 
i leoliad, cyfeiriadu, dwysedd, gweddlun, ffurf adeiledig a thirlunio ac i effeithiolrwydd ynni a 
defnyddio ynni adnewyddadwy, yn cynnwys deunyddiau a thechnoleg; 

k) Meithrin dylunio cynhwysol; 
l) Sicrhau y caiff ardaloedd preswyl presennol a nodweddir gan safonau uchel o breifatrwydd 

ac ehangder eu gwarchod rhag gor-ddatblygu a mewnlenwi ansensitif neu amhriodol. 
 
Cyfeirir at bolisïau perthnasol allweddol eraill yr LDP yn adroddiad y swyddog. 
 
Canllawiau Cynllunio Atodol (SPG): 
Gall y Canllawiau Cynllunio Atodol dilynol hefyd fod yn berthnasol i wneud penderfyniadau fel 
ystyriaeth cynllunio perthnasol: 

- Seilwaith Gwyrdd (mabwysiadwyd Ebrill 2015) 
- Canllawiau Dylunio Trosi Adeiladau Amaethyddol (mabwysiadwyd Ebrill 2015) 
- Polisi H4(g) LDP Trosi/Adfer Adeiladau yng Nghefn Gwlad i Ddefnydd Preswyl - Asesu Ail-

ddefnydd ar gyfer Dibenion Busnes (mabwysiadwyd Ebrill 2015) 
- Polisïau H5 a H6 LDP Anheddau yn Lle ac Ymestyn Anheddau Gwledig yng Nghefn Gwlad 

(mabwysiadwyd Ebrill 2015) 



 

 

- Arfarniad Ardal Cadwraeth Trellech (Ebrill 2012) 
- Garejys Domestig (mabwysiadwyd Ionawr 2013) 
- Safonau Parcio Sir Fynwy (mabwysiadwyd Ionawr 2013) 
- Ymagwedd at Oblygiadau Cynllunio (Mawrth 2013) 
- Drafft Tai Fforddiadwy (Gorffennaf 2015) 
- Drafft Ynni Adnewyddadwy ac Effeithiolrwydd Ynni (Rhagfyr 2014) 
- Drafft Nodyn Cyngor Cynllunio ar  Asesu Tirlun Datblygu ac Effaith Gweledol Tyrbinau 

Gwynt 
- Drafft Prif Wynebau Siopau (Mehefin 2015) 

 
Polisi Cynllunio Cyhoeddus 
Gall y polisi cynllunio cenedlaethol dilynol hefyd fod yn berthnasol i wneud penderfyniadau fel 
ystyriaeth cynllunio berthnasol: 

- Polisi Cynllunio Cymru (PPW) 12 
- Nodiadau Cyngor Technegol (TAN) PPW: 
- TAN 1: Cydastudiaethau Argaeledd Tir Tai (2014) 
- TAN 2: Cynllunio a Thai Fforddiadwy (2006) 
- TAN 3: Symleiddio Parthau Cynllunio (1996) 
- TAN 4: Manwerthu a Chanol Trefi (1996) 
- TAN 5: Cadwraeth Natur a Chynllunio (2009) 
- TAN 6: Cynllunio ar gyfer Cymunedau Gwledig Cynaliadwy (2010) 
- TAN 7: Rheoli Hysbysebion Awyr Agored (1996) 
- TAN 8: Ynni Adnewyddadwy (2005) 
- TAN 9: Gorfodaeth Rheoli Adeiladu (1997) 
- TAN 10: Gorchmynion Cadwraeth Coed (1997) 
- TAN 11: Sŵn (1997) 
- TAN 12: Dylunio (2014) 
- TAN 13: Twristiaeth (1997) 
- TAN 14: Cynllunio Arfordirol (1998) 
- TAN 15: Datblygu a Risg Llifogydd (2004) 
- TAN 16: Chwaraeon, Hamdden a Gofodau Agored (2009) 
- TAN 18: Trafnidiaeth (2007) 
- TAN 19: Telathrebu (2002) 
- TAN 20: Y Gymraeg (2013) 
- TAN 21: Gwastraff (2014) 
- TAN 23: Datblygu Economaidd (2014) 
- TAN 24: Yr Amgylchedd Hanesyddol (2017) 
- Nodyn Cyngor Technegol Mwynol (MTAN) Cymru 1: Agregau (30 Mawrth 2004) 
- Nodyn Cyngor Technegol Mwynol (MTAN) Cymru 2: Glo (20 Ionawr 2009) 
- Cylchlythyr Llywodraeth Cymru 016/2014 ar amodau cynllunio 

 
Materion eraill 
 
Gall y ddeddfwriaeth ddilynol arall fod yn berthnasol wrth wneud penderfyniadau 
Deddf Cynllunio (Cymru) 2016 
 
Daeth Adrannau 11 a 31 y Ddeddf Cynllunio i rym yn Ionawr 2016 yn golygu fod y Gymraeg yn 
ystyriaeth cynllunio berthnasol. Mae Adran 11 yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i'r gwerthusiad 
cynaliadwyedd, a gymerir wrth baratoi LDP, gynnwys asesiad o effeithiau tebygol y cynllun ar 
ddefnydd y Gymraeg yn y gymuned. Lle mae cynllun integredig sengl yr awdurdod wedi dynodi 
bod y Gymraeg yn flaenoriaeth, dylai'r asesiad fedru dangos y cysylltiad rhwng yr ystyriaeth ar 
gyfer y Gymraeg a'r prif arfarniad cynaliadwyedd ar gyfer yr LDP, fel y'i nodir yn TAN 20. 
Mae Adran 31 y Ddeddf Cynllunio yn egluro y gall awdurdodau cynllunio gynnwys ystyriaethau yn 
ymwneud â'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg wrth wneud penderfyniadau ar geisiadau am ganiatâd cynllunio, 
cyn belled ag mae'n berthnasol i'r Gymraeg. Nid yw'r darpariaethau yn rhoi unrhyw bwysiad 
ychwanegol i'r Gymraeg o gymharu ag ystyriaethau perthnasol eraill. Mater i'r awdurdod cynllunio 
lleol yn llwyr yw p'un ai yw'r Gymraeg yn ystyriaeth berthnasol mewn unrhyw gais cynllunio, a 



 

 

dylai'r penderfyniad p'un ai i roi ystyriaeth i faterion y Gymraeg gael ei seilio ar yr ystyriaeth a 
roddwyd i'r Gymraeg fel rhan o broses paratoi'r LDP. 
Cynhaliwyd gwerthusiad cynaliadwyedd ar Gynllun Datblygu Lleol (LDP) Sir Fynwy a 
fabwysiadwyd yn 2014, gan roi ystyriaeth i'r ystod lawn o ystyriaethau cymdeithasol, amgylcheddol 
ac economaidd, yn cynnwys y Gymraeg. Cyfran cymharol fach o boblogaeth Sir Fynwy sy'n siarad, 
darllen neu ysgrifennu Cymraeg o gymharu gydag awdurdodau lleol eraill yng Nghymru ac ni 
ystyriwyd fod angen i'r LDP gynnwys polisi penodol ar y Gymraeg. Roedd casgliad yr asesiad am 
effeithiau tebygol y cynllun ar y defnydd o'r Gymraeg yn y gymuned yn fach iawn. 
 
Rheoliadau Asesiad Effaith ar yr Amgylchedd1999 
Mae Rheoliadau Cynllunio Tref a Gwlad (Asesiad Effaith ar yr Amgylchedd) (Lloegr a Chymru) 
1999 fel y'i diwygiwyd gan Reoliadau Cynllunio Tref a Gwlad (Asesiad Effaith ar yr Amgylchedd) 
(Diwygiad) 2008 yn berthnasol i'r argymhellion a wnaed. Bydd y swyddog yn tynnu sylw at hynny 
pan gyflwynwyd Datganiad Amgylcheddol gyda chais. 
 
Rheoliadau Cadwraeth Rhywogaethau a Chynefinoedd 2017 
Lle aseswyd bod safe cais yn safle bridio neu glwydo ar gyfer rhywogaethau Ewropeaidd a 
warchodir, bydd angen fel arfer i'r datblygydd wneud cais am "randdirymiad' (trwydded datblygu) 
gan Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymrau. Mae pob rhywogaeth o ystlumod, pathewod a madfallod cribog 
mawr yn enghreifftiau o'r rhywogaethau gwarchodedig hyn. Wrth ystyried ceisiadau cynllunio 
mae'n ofynnol i Gyngor Sir Fynwy fel awdurdod cynllunio lleol roi ystyriaeth i Reoliadau Cadwraeth 
Rhywogaethau a Chynefinoedd 20120 (y Rheoliadau Cynefinoedd) ac i'r ffaith mai dim ond lle 
cyflawnir tri phrawf a nodir yn Erthygl 16 y Gyfarwyddeb Cynefinoedd y caniateir rhanddirymiadau. 
Caiff y tri phrawf eu nodi islaw. 
 
(i) Mae'r rhanddirymiad er budd iechyd a diogelwch y cyhoedd, neu am resymau hanfodol 
eraill o ddiddordeb pennaf i'r cyhoedd, yn cynnwys rhai o natur economaidd a chanlyniadau 
buddiol o bwysigrwydd sylfaenol i'r amgylchedd. 
(ii) Nad oes dewis arall boddhaol. 
(iii) Nad yw'r rhanddirymiad yn niweidiol i gynnal y boblogaeth o'r rhywogaeth dan sylw drwy 
statws cadwraeth ffafriol yn eu hardal naturiol. 
Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 
Nod y Ddeddf yw gwella llesiant cymdeithasol, economaidd, amgylcheddol a diwylliannol Cymru. 
Mae'r Ddeddf yn gosod nifer o amcanion llesiant 

- Cymru lewyrchus; defnydd effeithiol o adnoddau, pobl fedrus ac addysgedig, cynhyrchu 
cyfoeth, darparu swyddi; 

- Cymru gref; cynnal a chyfoethogi bioamrywiaeth ac ecosystemau sy'n cefnogi hynny ac a 
all addasu i newid (e.e. newid yn yr hinsawdd); 

- Cymru iachach; cynyddu llesiant corfforol a meddyliol pobl i'r eithaf a deall effeithiau 
iechyd; 

- Cymru o gymunedau cydlynol: cymunedau yn ddeniadol, hyfyw, diogel a gyda 
chysylltiadau da. 

- Cymru sy'n gyfrifol yn fyd-eang: rhoi ystyriaeth i effaith ar lesiant byd-eang wrth ystyried 
llesiant cymdeithasol, economaidd ac amgylcheddol lleol; 

- Cymru gyda diwylliant egnïol a'r iaith Gymraeg yn ffynnu: caiff diwylliant, treftadaeth a'r 
Gymraeg eu hyrwyddo a'u diogelu. Caiff pobl eu hannog i gymryd rhan mewn chwaraeon, 
celf a hamdden; 

- Cymru fwy cyfartal: gall pobl gyflawni eu potensial beth bynnag yw eu cefndir neu 
amgylchiadau. 

 
Caiff nifer o egwyddorion datblygu cynaliadwy hefyd eu hamlinellu: 

- Hirdymor: cydbwyso angen tymor byr gyda'r hirdymor a chynllunio ar gyfer y dyfodol; 
- Cydweithio: cydweithio gyda phartneriaid eraill i gyflawni amcanion; 
- Ymgyfraniad: cynnwys y rhai sydd â diddordeb a gofyn am eu barn; 
- Atal: rhoi adnoddau i ateb problemau rhag digwydd neu waethygu; 
- Integreiddio: cael effaith gadarnhaol ar bobl, yr economi a'r amgylchedd a cheisio bod o 

fudd i bob un o'r tri. 



 

 

 
Mae'r gwaith a wneir gan awdurdod cynllunio lleol yn cysylltu’n uniongyrchol â hyrwyddo a sicrhau 
datblygu cynaliadwy ac yn anelu i sicrhau cydbwysedd rhwng y tri maes: amgylchedd, economi a 
chymdeithas. 
 
Trefn Troseddu ac Anrhefn 1998 
Mae Adran 17(1) Deddf Troseddu ac Anrhefn 1998 yn gosod dyletswydd ar awdurdod lleol i 
weithredu ei wahanol swyddogaethau gan roi ystyriaeth ddyledus i effaith debygol gweithredu'r 
swyddogaethau hynny ar, a'r angen i wneud popeth y gall ei wneud yn rhesymol i atal troseddu ac 
anrhefn yn ei ardal. Gall troseddu ac ofn troseddu fod yn ystyriaeth cynllunio berthnasol. Tynnir 
sylw at y pwnc hwn yn adroddiad y swyddog lle mae'n ffurfio ystyriaeth sylweddol ar gyfer cynnig. 
 
Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 
Mae Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 yn cynnwys dyletswydd cydraddoldeb sector cyhoeddus i 
integreiddio ystyriaeth cydraddoldeb a chysylltiadau da ym musnes rheolaidd awdurdodau 
cyhoeddus. Mae'r Ddeddf yn dynodi nifer o 'nodweddion gwarchodedig': oedran, anabledd, 
ailbennu rhywedd; priodas a phartneriaeth sifil; hil; crefydd neu gredo; rhyw; a chyfeiriadedd 
rhywiol. Bwriedir i gydymffurfiaeth arwain at benderfyniadau a wnaed ar sail gwybodaeth well a 
datblygu polisi a gwasanaethau sy'n fwy effeithlon ar gyfer defnyddwyr. Wrth weithredu ei 
swyddogaethau, mae'n rhaid i'r Cyngor roi ystyriaeth ddyledus i'r angen i: ddileu gwahaniaethu 
anghyfreithlon, aflonyddu, erledigaeth ac ymddygiad arall a gaiff ei wahardd gan y Ddeddf; hybu 
cyfle cyfartal rhwng pobl sy'n rhannu nodwedd warchodedig a'r rhai nad ydynt; a meithrin 
cysylltiadau da rhwng pobl sy'n rhannu nodwedd warchodedig a'r rhai nad ydynt. Mae rhoi 
ystyriaeth ddyledus i hyrwyddo cydraddoldeb yn cynnwys: dileu neu leihau anfanteision a 
ddioddefir gan bobl oherwydd eu nodweddion gwarchodedig; cymryd camau i ddiwallu anghenion 
o grwpiau gwarchodedig lle mae'r rhain yn wahanol i anghenion pobl eraill; ac annog pobl o 
grwpiau gwarchodedig i gymryd rhan mewn bywyd cyhoeddus neu mewn gweithgareddau eraill lle 
mae eu cyfranogiad yn anghymesur o isel. 
 
Mesur Plant a Theuluoedd (Cymru) 
Mae ymgynghoriad ar geisiadau cynllunio yn agored i'n holl ddinasyddion faint bynnag eu hoed; ni 
chynhelir unrhyw ymgynghoriad wedi'i dargedu a anelwyd yn benodol at blant a phobl ifanc. Yn 
dibynnu ar faint y datblygiad arfaethedig, rhoddir cyhoeddusrwydd i geisiadau drwy lythyrau i 
feddianwyr cyfagos, hysbysiadau safle, hysbysiadau yn y wasg a/neu gyfryngau cymdeithasol. Nid 
yw'n rhaid i bobl sy'n ymateb i ymgynghoriadau roi eu hoedran nac unrhyw ddata personol arall, ac 
felly ni chaiff y data yma ei gadw na'i gofnodi mewn unrhyw ffordd, ac ni chaiff ymatebion eu 
gwahanu yn ôl oedran. 



 

 

 
Protocol ar gyfraniadau gan y cyhoedd mewn Pwyllgorau Cynllunio 
 
Dim ond yn llwyr yn unol â'r protocol hwn y caniateir cyfraniadau gan y cyhoedd mewn Pwyllgorau 
Cynllunio. Ni allwch fynnu siarad mewn Pwyllgor fel hawl. Mae'r gwahoddiad i siarad a'r ffordd y 
cynhelir y cyfarfod ar ddisgresiwn Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cynllunio ac yn amodol ar y pwyntiau a 
nodir islaw. 
 
Pwy all siarad 
Cynghorau Cymuned a Thref 
Gall cynghorau cymuned a thref annerch y Pwyllgor Cynllunio. Dim ond aelodau etholedig 
cynghorau cymuned a thref gaiff siarad. Disgwylir i gynrychiolwyr gydymffurfio â'r egwyddorion 
dilynol: - 
(i)     Cydymffurfio â Chod Cenedlaethol Ymddygiad Llywodraeth Leol. (ii)    Peidio cyflwyno 
gwybodaeth nad yw'n: 
·    gyson gyda sylwadau ysgrifenedig eu cyngor, neu 

 yn rhan o gais, neu  

 wedi ei gynnwys yn yr adroddiad neu ffeil cynllunio. 
 
Aelodau'r Cyhoedd 
Cyfyngir siarad i un aelod o'r cyhoedd yn gwrthwynebu datblygiad ac un aelod o'r cyhoedd yn 
cefnogi datblygiad. Lle mae mwy nag un person yn gwrthwynebu neu'n cefnogi, dylai'r unigolion 
neu grwpiau gydweithio i sefydlu llefarydd. Gall Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor weithredu disgresiwn i 
ganiatáu ail siaradwr ond dim ond mewn amgylchiadau eithriadol lle mae cais sylweddol yn ysgogi 
gwahanol safbwyntiau o fewn un 'ochr' y ddadl (e.e. cais archfarchnad lle mae un llefarydd yn 
cynrychioli preswylwyr ac un arall yn cynrychioli manwerthwyr lleol). Gall aelodau'r cyhoedd benodi 
cynrychiolwyr i siarad ar eu rhan. 
Lle na ddeuir i gytundeb, bydd yr hawl i siarad yn mynd i'r person/sefydliad cyntaf i gofrestru eu 
cais. Lle mae'r gwrthwynebydd wedi cofrestru i siarad caiff yr ymgeisydd neu asiant yr hawl i 
ymateb. 
Cyfyngir siarad i geisiadau lle cyflwynwyd llythyrau gwrthwynebu/cefnogaeth neu lofnodion ar 
ddeiseb i'r Cyngor gan 5 neu fwy o aelwydydd/sefydliadau gwahanol. Gall y Cadeirydd weithredu 
disgresiwn i ganiatáu siarad gan aelodau o'r cyhoedd lle gallai cais effeithio'n sylweddol ar ardal 
wledig prin ei phoblogaeth ond y derbyniwyd llai na 5 o lythyr yn gwrthwynebu/cefnogi. 
Ymgeiswyr 
Bydd gan ymgeiswyr neu eu hasiantau a benodwyd hawl ymateb lle mae aelodau'r cyhoedd neu 
gyngor cymuned/tref yn annerch pwyllgor. Fel arfer dim ond ar un achlysur y caniateir i'r cyhoedd 
siarad pan gaiff ceisiadau eu hystyried gan Bwyllgor Cynllunio. Pan ohirir ceisiadau ac yn arbennig 
pan gânt eu hailgyflwyno yn dilyn penderfyniad pwyllgor i benderfynu ar gais yn groes i gyngor 
swyddog, ni chaniateir i'r cyhoedd siarad fel arfer. Fodd bynnag bydd yn rhaid ystyried 
amgylchiadau arbennig ar geisiadau a all gyfiawnhau eithriad. 
 
Cofrestru Cais i Siarad 
 
I gofrestru cais i siarad, mae'n rhaid i wrthwynebwyr/cefnogwyr yn gyntaf fod wedi gwneud 
sylwadau ysgrifenedig ar y cais. Mae'n rhaid iddynt gynnwys eu cais i siarad gyda'u sylwadau neu 
ei gofrestru wedyn gyda'r Cyngor. 
 
Caiff ymgeiswyr, asiantau a gwrthwynebwyr eu cynghori i aros mewn cysylltiad gyda'r 
swyddog achos am ddatblygiadau ar y cais. Cyfrifoldeb y rhai sy'n dymuno siarad yw gwirio 
os yw'r cais i gael ei ystyried gan y Pwyllgor Cynllunio drwy gysylltu â'r Swyddog Cynllunio, 
a all roi manylion o'r dyddiad tebygol ar gyfer clywed y cais. Caiff y drefn ar gyfer cofrestru'r 
cais i siarad ei nodi islaw. 
 
Mae'n rhaid i unrhyw un sy'n dymuno siarad hysbysu Swyddogion Gwasanaethau Democrataidd y 
Cyngor drwy ffonio 01633 644219 neu drwy e-bost i registertospeak@monmouthshire.gov.uk. Caiff 
unrhyw geisiadau i siarad a gaiff eu e-bostio eu cydnabod cyn y dyddiad cau ar gyfer cofrestru i 



 

 

siarad. Os nad ydych yn derbyn cydnabyddiaeth cyn y dyddiad cau, cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd ar 01633 644219 i wirio y cafodd eich cais ei dderbyn. 
 
Mae'n rhaid i siaradwyr wneud hyn cyn gynted ag sydd modd, rhwng 12 canol dydd ar y dydd 
Mercher a 12 canol dydd ar y dydd Llun cyn y Pwyllgor. Gofynnir i chi adael rhif ffôn y gellir cysylltu 
â chi yn ystod y dydd. 
 
Bydd y Cyngor yn cadw rhestr o bobl sy'n dymuno siarad yn y Pwyllgor Cynllunio.  
 
Gweithdrefn yng Nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio 
Dylai pobl sydd wedi cofrestru i siarad gyrraedd ddim hwyrach na 15 munud cyn dechrau'r 
cyfarfod. Bydd swyddog yn cynghori ar drefniadau seddi ac yn ateb ymholiadau. Caiff y weithdrefn 
ar gyfer delio gyda siarad gan y cyhoedd ei osod islaw: 

 Bydd y Cadeirydd yn nodi'r cais i'w ystyried. 

 Bydd swyddog yn cyflwyno crynodeb o'r cais a materion yn ymwneud â'r argymhelliad 

 Os nad yw'r aelod lleol  ar y Pwyllgor Cynllunio, bydd y Cadeirydd yn ei (g)wahodd i siarad am 
ddim mwy na 6 munud 

 Yna bydd y Cadeirydd yn gwahodd cynrychiolydd y cyngor cymuned neu dref i siarad am ddim 
mwy na 4 munud. 

 Bydd y Cadeirydd wedyn yn gwahodd yr ymgeisydd neu asiant a benodwyd (os yn berthnasol) 
i siarad am ddim mwy na 4 munud. Lle mae mwy na un person neu sefydliad yn siarad yn 
erbyn cais, ar ddisgresiwn y Cadeirydd bydd gan yr ymgeisydd neu'r asiant a benodwyd hawl i 
siarad am ddim mwy na 5 munud. 

 Fel arfer cydymffurfir yn gaeth â chyfyngiadau amser, fodd bynnag bydd gan y Cadeirydd 
ddisgresiwn i addasu'r amser gan roi ystyriaeth i amgylchiadau'r cais neu'r rhai sy'n siarad. 

 Dim ond unwaith y gall siaradwyr siarad. 

 Bydd aelodau'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio wedyn yn trafod y cais, gan ddechrau gydag aelod lleol o'r 
Pwyllgor Cynllunio. 

 Bydd y swyddogion yn ymateb i'r pwyntiau a godir os oes angen. 

 Yn union cyn i'r mater gael ei roi i'r bleidlais, gwahoddir yr aelod lleol i grynhoi, gan siarad am 
ddim mwy na 2 funud. 

 Ni all cynrychiolydd y cyngor cymuned neu dref neu wrthwynebydd/cefnogwyr neu'r 
ymgeisydd/asiant gymryd rhan yn ystyriaeth aelodau o'r cais ac ni allant ofyn cwestiynau os 
nad yw'r cadeirydd yn eu gwahodd i wneud hynny. 

 Lle mae gwrthwynebydd/cefnogwr, ymgeisydd/asiant neu gyngor cymuned/tref wedi siarad ar 
gais, ni chaniateir unrhyw siarad pellach gan neu ar ran y grŵp hwnnw pe byddai'r cais yn cael 
ei ystyried eto mewn cyfarfod o'r pwyllgor yn y dyfodol heblaw y bu newid sylweddol yn y cais. 

 Ar ddisgresiwn y Cadeirydd, gall y Cadeirydd neu aelod o'r Pwyllgor yn achlysurol geisio 
eglurhad ar bwynt a wnaed. 

 Mae penderfyniad y Cadeirydd yn derfynol. 

 Wrth gynnig p'un ai i dderbyn argymhelliad y swyddog neu i wneud diwygiad, bydd yr aelod 
sy'n gwneud y cynnig yn nodi'r cynnig yn glir. 

 Pan gafodd y cynnig ei eilio, bydd y Cadeirydd yn dweud pa aelodau a gynigiodd ac a eiliodd y 
cynnig ac yn ailadrodd y cynnig a gynigwyd. Caiff enwau'r cynigydd a'r eilydd eu cofnodi. 

 Bydd aelod yn peidio pleidleisio yng nghyswllt unrhyw gais cynllunio os na fu'n bresennol drwy 
gydol cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio, y cyflwyniad llawn ac ystyriaeth y cais neilltuol hwnnw. 

 Bydd unrhyw aelod sy'n ymatal rhag pleidleisio yn ystyried p'un ai i roi rheswm dros ei 
(h)ymatal. 

 Bydd swyddog yn cyfrif y pleidleisiau ac yn cyhoeddi'r penderfyniad. 
 
Cynnwys yr Arweithiau 
Dylai sylwadau gan gynrychiolydd y cyngor tref/cymuned neu wrthwynebydd, cefnogwr neu 
ymgeisydd/asiant gael eu cyfyngu i faterion a godwyd yn eu sylwadau gwreiddiol a bod yn faterion 
cynllunio perthnasol. Mae hyn yn cynnwys: 

 Polisïau cynllunio cenedlaethol a lleol perthnasol 

 Ymddangosiad a chymeriad y datblygiad, gweddlun a dwysedd 



 

 

 Cynhyrchu traffig, diogelwch priffordd a pharcio/gwasanaethu; 

 Cysgodi, edrych dros, ymyriad sŵn, aroglau neu golled arall amwynder. 
 
Dylai siaradwyr osgoi cyfeirio at faterion y tu allan i gylch gorchwyl y Pwyllgor Cynllunio, megis: 

 Anghydfod ffiniau, cyfamodau a hawliau eraill eiddo 

 Sylwadau personol (e.e. cymhellion neu gamau gweithredu'r ymgeisydd hyd yma neu am 
aelodau neu swyddogion) 

 Hawliau i olygfeydd neu ddibrisiant eiddo. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee held in the 
 Council Chamber, County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA with remote attendance on 

Tuesday, 6th February, 2024 at 2.00 pm 
 

  
 

PRESENT:  
 

County Councillor Phil Murphy (Chair) 
County Councillor   Dale Rooke (Vice Chair) 
 

 County Councillors: Jill Bond, Fay Bromfield, Emma Bryn, 
Sara Burch, Jan Butler, John Crook, Tony Easson, Steven Garratt, 
Meirion Howells, Jayne McKenna, Maureen Powell, Sue Riley and 
Ann Webb 
 

 

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

Craig O'Connor Head of Planning 
Philip Thomas Development Services Manager 
Andrew Jones Development Management Area Team Manager 
Amy Longford Development Management Area Team Manager 
Paige Moseley Solicitor 
Richard Williams Democratic Services Officer 
Anna Hawker Trainee Solicitor 

 
APOLOGIES: 
 

County Councillor Su McConnel 
 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  
 
County Councillor Sara Burch declared a personal and prejudicial interest pursuant to 
the Members’ Code of Conduct in respect of application DM/2022/01831, due to her 
previous involvement in the scheme and consultation while Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for Active Travel. She left the meeting taking no part in the discussion or 
voting thereon. 
 
County Councillor Dale Rooke declared a personal and prejudicial interest pursuant to 
the Members’ Code of Conduct in respect of application DM/2023/01562, as he is one 
of Chepstow Town Council representatives that has supported the Friends of the Dell 
Playpark Group. He left the meeting taking no part in the discussion or voting thereon. 
 
2. Confirmation of Minutes  

 

The minutes of the Planning Committee meeting dated 10th January 2024 were 
confirmed and signed by the Chair. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee held in the 
 Council Chamber, County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA with remote attendance on 

Tuesday, 6th February, 2024 at 2.00 pm 
 

 

3. Application DM/2022/01831 - Improvements to the existing pedestrian and 
cycle connectivity across Castle Meadows by providing Active Travel 
compliant routes. Including the upgrade of existing routes, access points and 
the replacement of the existing footbridge over the River Gavenny.  Land At 
Castle Meadows, Abergavenny, Monmouthshire  

 
We considered the report of the application and late correspondence which was 
recommended for approval subject to the conditions outlined in the report. 
 
https://www.youtube.com/live/7mdGfiFwxF8?si=68S9tIDlk5j72kJu&t=201 
 
In noting the detail of the application and the views expressed, it was proposed by 
County Councillor Ann Webb and seconded by County Councillor Emma Bryn that 
application DM/2022/01831 be approved subject to the conditions outlined in the report.  
 
Upon being put to the vote, the following votes were recorded: 
  
For approval  - 12   
Against approval - 0  
Abstentions  - 1  
 
The proposition was carried.  
 
We resolved that application DM/2022/01831 be approved subject to the conditions 
outlined in the report. 
 

4. Application DM/2023/01562 - Replacement and relocation of the existing 
children's play area at Castle Dell. It is proposed to remove all of the existing 
items of play equipment and slightly relocate the boundary of the play area to 
the north, away from the Town Wall. Install additional items of equipment 
between the relocated play area and the water fountain and install an elevated 
bank slide from the top level of the site down to the lower footpath. Play Area, 
Castle Dell, Welsh Street, Chepstow  

 

We considered the report of the application and late correspondence which was 
recommended for approval subject to the conditions outlined in the report. 
 
https://www.youtube.com/live/7mdGfiFwxF8?si=DntnTVRduPJbxDxe&t=4115 
 
In noting the detail of the application and the views expressed, it was proposed by 
County Councillor Ann Webb and seconded by County Councillor Emma Bryn that 
application DM/2023/01562 be approved subject to the conditions outlined in the report.  
 
Upon being put to the vote, the following votes were recorded: 
  
For approval  - 14   
Against approval - 0  
Abstentions  - 0  

Page 2

https://www.youtube.com/live/7mdGfiFwxF8?si=68S9tIDlk5j72kJu&t=201
https://www.youtube.com/live/7mdGfiFwxF8?si=DntnTVRduPJbxDxe&t=4115


MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee held in the 
 Council Chamber, County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA with remote attendance on 

Tuesday, 6th February, 2024 at 2.00 pm 
 

 
The proposition was carried.  
 
We resolved that application DM/2023/01562 be approved subject to the conditions 
outlined in the report. 
 

5. Planning Code of Practice (Revised)  
 
We considered the revised Planning Code of Practice. 
 
https://www.youtube.com/live/7mdGfiFwxF8?si=n_sBUaJ4Z9YsAwnb&t=4949 
 

It was proposed by County Councillor Fay Bromfield and seconded by County 
Councillor Dale Rooke that we endorse the revised Planning Code of Practice without 
modification and that it be referred to Monmouthshire County Council’s Standards 
Committee on 11th March 2024. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, the following votes were recorded: 
 
In favour of the proposal - 14 
Against the proposal - 0 
Abstentions   - 0 
 
The proposition was carried. 
 

We resolved to endorse the revised Planning Code of Practice without modification and 
that it be referred to Monmouthshire County Council’s Standards Committee on 11th 
March 2024. 
 

6. Planning Appeals Received - 1st October to 31st December 2023  
 

We noted the planning appeals received by the Planning Department for the period 1st 
October to 31st December 2023. 
 
 

The meeting ended at 3.32 pm.  
 

 

Page 3

https://www.youtube.com/live/7mdGfiFwxF8?si=n_sBUaJ4Z9YsAwnb&t=4949


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
Application 
Number: 

DM/2020/00400 
 

 
Proposal: 

 
Construction of a 1km closed road cycle track, vehicle access and car parking 

 
Address: 

 
Land Adjoining Racecourse Farm & Llanfoist Waste Transfer Station Transfer 
Station, Abergavenny NP7 9LQ 
 

Applicant: Mr M Moran - MonLife 
 

Plans: 
 

Site Plan Site Plan - , Location Plan Location Plan - , Landscaping Plan 1517-
204 - Rev B, Green Infrastructure Framework Plan Element Urbanism & 
Landscape - Rev 03B, Design and Access Statement Rev A - 13/12/21, Other 
Summary Statement & Planning Statement by Owen Davies Consulting - 
December 2021, Landscape Planting Plan 1517-301 Rev B- Planting Plan 1 of 
3, Landscape Planting Plan 1517-302 Rev B - Planting Plan 2 of 3, Landscape 
Planting Plan 1517-303 Rev B - Planting Plan 3 of 3  

 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve 
 
Case Officer: Ms Kate Bingham 
Date Valid: 12.05.2021  
 
1.0 APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
1.1 This application was presented to Planning Committee on 1 March 2022 and was approved 
subject to a full Appropriate Assessment (AA) concluding that features of the River Usk SAC will not 
be adversely affected by the development and the conditions outlined in the report below and as 
revised in late correspondence:  
 
Condition 4 (GI Management Plan) 
A proportionate Green Infrastructure Management Plan shall be submitted to and be approved in 
writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of the development. The content 
of the Management Plan shall include the following;  
 
a) Description and evaluation of Green Infrastructure assets to be identified, protected and managed 
in the GI management plan including those that are to be part of strategic landscaping: 
a. Trees, Hedgerows, grassland  
b. Green corridors  
c. Pond environs, interface and blue corridors 
b) Opportunities for enhancement to be incorporated: 
a. Management of Grassland for botanical species diversity and / or protected species including 
reptiles  
b. Management of tree and hedge buffer strips to increase and maintain diversity, connectivity and 
screening  
c. Maintain habitat connectivity through and or around the perimeter of the site for species  
c) Trends and constraints on site that might influence management of above features.  
d) Aims and objectives of management.  
e) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.  
f) Prescriptions for management actions.  
g) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being rolled forward 
over a twenty-year period).  
h) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the plan.  
i) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures. 
j) Wardening and site liaison.  
k) Protected species licensing requirements for undertaking habitat management and surveillance. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a



 
The Management Plan shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which 
the long term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the management 
body(ies) responsible for its delivery as appropriate. The plan shall also set out (where the results 
from monitoring show that conservation aims and objectives of the Green Infrastructure 
Management Plan are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, 
agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully functioning Green 
Infrastructure objectives of the originally approved scheme. The approved plan shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To safeguard all Green Infrastructure Assets at the site in accordance with Local 
Development Plan policies, DES1,  S13, GI1, NE1, EP1 and SD4. 
 
N.B. The proposed GI Management Plan condition above supersedes the need for the Landscape 
& Environmental Management Plan (LEMP) condition 7 in the listed conditions in the March 2022 
report below - now omitted. Informative 4 is amended to reflect that a GI Management Plan is 
required rather than a LEMP.    
 
Additional condition (Condition no. 11) (CEMP): 
No development shall take place (including ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Contractor’s 
Construction Environmental Management plan (CEMP) is submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include the following as a minimum: 
 
a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.  
b) Identification of “protection zones”.  
c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to avoid or reduce 
impacts during construction 
d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features  
e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site to oversee 
works.  
f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.  
g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or similarly competent 
person.  
h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.  
i) General site management: details of the construction programme including site clearance, method 
statements, surface water management and measures, site waste management and disposal, 
sustainable drainage (pre- and post-construction), maintenance and monitoring programmes;  
j) Pollution prevention: demonstrate how relevant Guidelines for Pollution Prevention and best 
practice will be implemented, including details of emergency spill procedures and an incident 
response plan;  
k) Details of the persons and bodies responsible for activities associated with the CEMP and 
emergency contact details;  
l) A biosecurity risk assessment that considers non-native species (INNS) and specific diseases. 
 
The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To safeguard species protected under the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017 and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Integrity of the 
River Usk SAC. 
 
1.2 As the site is within the Phosphorous Sensitive Catchment Area of the River Usk Special Area 
of Conservation (SAC), all development must demonstrate phosphate neutrality or betterment in 
relation to the disposal of foul waste. At the time that the application was previously considered by 
Planning Committee, portaloos were to be provided in the park area at the north of the site for daily 
use, with additional facilities being brought in for large-scale events. It was proposed that wastewater 
would be removed from site and then taken to either a Wastewater Treatment Works (WwTW) with 
phosphorus stripping facilities or a WwTW located outside  of the SAC catchment area (north 
Monmouthshire). 
 

Page 6



1.3 NRW have now reviewed the environmental permit for the DCWW Llanfoist Waste Water 
Treatment Works (WwTWs) meaning that development can once again connect to the main sewer 
providing that the treatment works operates in accordance with the agreed environmental permit. 
As such, it is now proposed that users of the velo park will have access to existing welfare facilities 
at the adjacent site (The One Planet Centre at the Waste Recycling Centre, Llanfoist) that 
connects to the mains. DCWW have been consulted on whether there is capacity at the Llanfoist 
WwTWs and raised no objection to the proposed development. On this basis Condition 12 (Foul 
Drainage Strategy) is no longer required. 
 
1.4 In their latest advice, NRW request some updates to conditions to be reflected in an updated 
Appropriate Assessment under the Habitats Regulations. For lighting, they suggest a condition 
that reflects that the previous 21:30 cut-off time is updated to after dusk (when Otters may be 
active). They also request a separate condition that restricts lighting within 20m of the river and on-
site ponds/watercourses between dawn and dusk.  
 
1.5 In relation to surface water, NRW have requested that a Surface Water Management Plan is 
secured and implemented. It is also worth noting that the development will be subject to separate 
SAB consent. 
 
1.6 NRW also sought clarification regarding the retention, ongoing management and enhancement 
of boundary habitats between the development and the river. This land remains in MCC’s 
ownership, is managed as agricultural land in accordance with a licence and as such, hedgerows 
will be covered by the protection afforded to them by the Hedgerow Regulations 1997. 
 
1.7 On the basis of the above the application is now represented to Committee for approval, 
subject to the updated Appropriate Assessment and the following additional conditions (as well as 
those revised conditions referred to above): 
 

12. Notwithstanding the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
1995 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification), there 
shall be no operation of lighting on site between dusk and dawn from 31st October through 
to March 1st. 
 
Reason: To safeguard species protected by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and The 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010, as well as a qualifying feature of 
the River Usk SAC. 
 

13. Notwithstanding the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
1995 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no 
lighting shall be operated within 20m of the river, the onsite watercourses and pond, 
between dusk and dawn. 

 
Reason: To safeguard species protected by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and The 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010, as well as a qualifying feature of 
the River Usk SAC. 
 

14. Prior to commencement of development, a Surface Water Drainage Plan to confirm details 
of surface water management shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  This shall include confirmation that no headwalls or discharge points 
will be installed on the riverbank. The development shall be implemented in accordance 
with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure the Integrity of the River Usk SAC. 
 

1.8 The previous report and conditions are presented below. 
 
REPORT TO COMMITTEE MARCH 2022 
 
 

Page 7



Application 
Number: 

DM/2020/00400 
 

 
Proposal: 

 
Construction of a 1km closed road cycle track, vehicle access and car parking 

 
Address: 

 
Land Adjoining Racecourse Farm & Llanfoist Waste Transfer Station Transfer 
Station, Abergavenny NP7 9LQ 
 

Applicant: Mr Mike Moran - MonLife 
 

Plans: 
 

Site Plan Site Plan - , Location Plan Location Plan - , Landscaping Plan 1517-
204 - Rev B, Green Infrastructure Framework Plan Element Urbanism & 
Landscape - Rev 03B, Design and Access Statement Rev A - 13/12/21, Other 
Summary Statement & Planning Statement by Owen Davies Consulting - 
December 2021, Landscape Planting Plan 1517-301 - Planting Plan 1 of 3, 
Landscape Planting Plan 1517-302 - Planting Plan 2 of 3, Landscape Planting 
Plan 1517-303 - Planting Plan 3 of 3,  

 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve 
 
Case Officer: Ms Kate Bingham 
Date Valid: 12.05.2021  
 
This application is presented to Planning Committee due to the number of representations 
and because Monmouthshire County Council is the applicant. 
 
1.0 APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
1.1 Site Description 
 
This application is submitted by Monmouthshire County Council who are seeking to build a cycling 
hub, or 'velo park' with a mix of different cycling facilities concentrating around a Closed Road 
Circuit (CRC).  The facility will be of regional and potentially national importance for the growth and 
development of cycling and other wheeled sports. It is intended to further enhance Abergavenny's 
reputation as one of the most successful cycling towns and destinations in Wales. 
 
The proposed site is at Racecourse Farm is 1.5 miles south of Abergavenny Town Centre, or 25 
minutes walking / 10minutes cycling distance. It is positioned in a mixed-use area adjacent to a 
junction of the A465 Heads of the Valleys Road.  
The area around the road junction has been developed to accommodate new housing, residential 
care home, roadside leisure/retail operators including a Premier Inn hotel, Brewer's Fayre 
restaurant, and a drive-through McDonald’s restaurants. Llanfoist Primary School is positioned at 
the western boundary of the Racecourse farm site. Other important features include the River Usk 
to the east and Monmouthshire Golf Course to the south. This is an established development area, 
and already includes a mix of land uses including education and leisure. 
 
The whole site is 6.4 ha in size and is currently used for the grazing of horses. Temporary uses of 
the land in recent years has included overspill events and camping for the National Eisteddfod. 
 
The floodplain of the River Usk covers the low-lying areas to the east and is categorised as Zone 
C2, an area of floodplain without significant flood defence infrastructure where only less vulnerable 
development should be considered. The land to the west of the site is at a higher level, including 
an area of the former household waste landfill. This area is undulating with some steeply sloping 
banks. As well as the unusual topography including a raised mound and former landfill site, there 
are several utility features including the footings and towers for the overhead power lines, a high-
pressure gas main (beneath ground) and a gravity fed sewer pipe. 
 

Page 8



Access into the site exists at two locations, a vehicle entrance formed in the opening between 
McDonald's and the Foxhunters Care Home and an existing field access adjacent to the One 
Planet Centre.  
 
In terms of the environmental qualities of the site, there are no national or local environmental 
designations, although the area exhibits a range of natural habitats including ponds and wetland 
areas. Ecological considerations are important to the site's development. The site is also within the 
Phosphorous Sensitive Catchment Area of the River Usk Special Area of Conservation (SAC). 
 
1.2 Value Added 
 
Following comments from Natural Resources Wales and the Council's Biodiversity Officer the 
following amendments have been made to the proposal: 
 
Reference to the use of the One Planet Centre as a facility has been removed to address 
concerns with any potential increase in phosphates. A small number of portaloos will be provided 
in the parking area for daily use. Large scale events will provide additional portaloo facilities in 
accordance with event management plans. 
 
Revised illustrative landscape masterplan with the following amendments: 
1. Additional amphibian habitat (pond) larger in scale than the recommended 4m x 3m added to 
the eastern side of the existing pond. The pond is as large as is reasonably possible to maximise 
ecological gain. 
2. Post and rail fencing added to the pond. 
3. Boardwalk and pond viewing platform shortened and realigned to meet the post and rail fence 
where interpretation board to be sited, with local vegetation clearance, when possible, to allow 
clear views over the pond. 
4. All reference to potential future access to the floodplain removed (ie additional to the existing 
PROW. 
5. Wildflower meadow areas extended in line with NRW landscape comments. 
6. Additional notes included on plan and in general notes below the legend to state: 
a. feathering in at toe of new embankments to ensure earthworks are as sensitive as possible and 
blend into the landscape (as currently stated in the submitted GI strategy) 
b. where 1:2 slopes are necessary, low gabion walls are introduced where beneficial to increase 
the areas of 1:3 which enables screen planting (again as in submitted GI strategy) 
c. SuDS basin inlets and outlets to be designed sensitively to minimise visual impact and avoid the 
need for headwalls - in the interests of landscape character i.e. set in gabion baskets aligned with 
slope.  
d. Notes on lighting hours of operation included 
7. The location of Ash trees indicated on plan to demonstrate that mitigation planting is provided in 
the event of their loss. 
8. Vegetation removal indicated on plan in line with NRW comments 
9. Reference to GCN fencing removed 
10. Reference to Otter tunnels removed 
11. Amended internal path arrangement to re-connect with PROW as diverted north of the track. 
Proposed alignment allows the additional pond as proposed, and the water body would help to 
naturally guide walkers along PROW 71 away from ecologically sensitive areas, apart from people 
visiting the pond viewing area. 
 
1.3 Proposal Description 
 
The national governing body, Welsh Cycling, has worked closely with the Council and local cycling 
clubs in recent years to promote very popular and successful national and local cycling events in 
the town. The town boasts several cycling clubs, including Abergavenny Road Club, one of the 
largest and most successful in Wales. Support for a velo park located in Abergavenny has been 
identified in the Welsh Cycling's Facilities Strategy and the emerging Monmouthshire Cycling 
Strategy. 
 
 

Page 9



The velo park including CRC will be a purpose-built cycling facility used for leisure, coaching, 
training and competitive cycling. It will also be available for other wheeled sports (e.g. wheelchair 
and Nordic skiing) and running. It combines recreational trails with a purpose-built circuit - a traffic 
free road used as a sports and leisure facility. The CRC will be 6 metres wide and 1km in length 
with street lighting covering part of the circuit to allow its use during the evening. 
 
2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY (if any) 
 
Reference 
Number 

Description Decision Decision Date 

   
DM/2018/01925 Proposed construction of single 

storey workshop/studio ancillary use 
in connection with existing dwelling 
house. 

Approved 18.01.2019 

  

DM/2018/01929 Alterations to existing stone walls to 
the perimeter of the proposed 
Studio/Workshop. Including 
reconstruction of missing and 
dilapidated sections walling using 
selected local stone, formation of a 
opening at the new pedestrian access 
point and replacement of the rounded 
concrete capping with a stone flag 
coping. 

Approved 04.01.2019 

  

  

DM/2020/00946 Discharge of conditions; 6 (details of 
existing sewer) 7 (foul water 
discharge scheme) and 9 (street 
phasing plan) 
10 (street management and 
maintenance plan) 11 (all details for 
adopted areas) 12 (PROW details 
and pedestrian infrastructure phasing) 
13 (surface water management) 14 
(construction traffic management) 15 
(lighting design for biodiversity) and 
16 (method statement for 
safeguarding biodiversity). Relating to 
application DC/2016/00880. 
 

Approved 16.10.2020 

  

DM/2020/00947 Discharge of conditions; 2 (detailed 
soft landscape scheme and green 
infrastructure management plan), 3 
(details of proposed earthworks), 5 
(hard landscape details) and 7 
(schedule of landscape 
maintenance). Relating to 
applications DM/2019/00346. 

Approved 27.11.2020 

  

DM/2020/01169 Install 1x 9m wooden pole (7.3m 
above ground). (Openreach ref. 
QCH619SW) 

Permission 
Not Required 

09.10.2020 

  

Page 10



DC/2013/00332 Removal of conditions restricting use 
to holiday accommodation 

Approved 18.09.2013 

  

DC/2006/00127 Proposed conversion and extension 
of existing barns to provide 13 units of 
holiday accommodation. 

Approved 04.02.2008 

  

DC/2006/00637 Proposed conversion and extension 
of existing barns to provide 13 units of 
holiday accommodation.  3 new build 
holiday cottages for disabled persons 

Approved 01.02.2008 

     

 
3.0 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Strategic Policies 
 
S5 LDP Community and Recreation Facilities 
S10 LDP Rural Enterprise 
S11 LDP Visitor Economy 
S12 LDP Efficient Resource Use and Flood Risk 
S13 LDP Landscape, Green Infrastructure and the Natural Environment 
S16 LDP Transport 
S17 LDP Place Making and Design 
 
Development Management Policies 
 
CRF2 LDP Outdoor Recreation/Public Open Space/Allotment Standards and Provision 
RE6 LDP Provision of Recreation, Tourism and Leisure Facilities in Open Countryside 
SD3 LDP Flood Risk 
SD4 LDP Sustainable Drainage 
LC1 LDP New Built Development in the Open Countryside 
LC5 LDP Protection and Enhancement of Landscape Character 
GI1 LDP Green Infrastructure 
NE1 LDP Nature Conservation and Development 
EP1 LDP Amenity and Environmental Protection 
EP2 LDP Protection of Water Sources and the Water Environment 
EP3 LDP Lighting 
EP5 LDP Foul Sewage Disposal 
MV1 LDP Proposed Developments and Highway Considerations 
MV3 LDP Public Rights of Way 
DES1 LDP General Design Considerations 
DES2 LDP Areas of Amenity Importance 
  
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 
Green Infrastructure SPG (April 2015) 
 
4.0 NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY 
 
Future Wales - the national plan 2040 
 
Future Wales is the national development framework, setting the direction for development in 
Wales to 2040. It is a development plan with a strategy for addressing key national priorities 
through the planning system, including sustaining and developing a vibrant economy, achieving 

Page 11



decarbonisation and climate-resilience, developing strong ecosystems and improving the health 
and well-being of our communities. Future Wales - the national plan 2040 is the national 
development framework and it is the highest tier plan , setting the direction for development in 
Wales to 2040. It is a framework which will be built on by Strategic Development Plans at a 
regional level and Local Development Plans. Planning decisions at every level of the planning 
system in Wales must be taken in accordance with the development plan as a whole. 
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 11 
 
The primary objective of PPW is to ensure that the planning system contributes towards the 
delivery of sustainable development and improves the social, economic, environmental and 
cultural well-being of Wales, as required by the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, the Well-being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and other key legislation and resultant 
duties such as the Socio-economic Duty. 
 
A well-functioning planning system is fundamental for sustainable development and achieving 
sustainable places.  PPW promotes action at all levels of the planning process which is conducive 
to maximising its contribution to the well-being of Wales and its communities. 
 
Technical Advice Notes 
 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 16 - Sport, Recreation and Open Space. 
 
Paragraph 3.17 states that: 'In urban fringe areas, particularly where there is insufficient land in 
urban areas, there may be opportunities to provide sport and recreation facilities in ways which do 
not conflict with other policies to protect the environment and amenity of communities'. 
 
Paragraph 3.18 states that: 'In rural areas, facilities should be located in or adjacent to 
settlements. Any proposed developments in the open countryside would require special 
justification. Appropriate proposals linked to farm diversification may be given favourable 
consideration.' 
 
5.0 REPRESENTATIONS 
 
5.1 Consultation Replies 
 
Llanfoist Fawr Community Council - This Community Council supports the principle of a closed 
road cycle track scheme in the Abergavenny area but has significant concerns regarding the 
proposed location. Consequently, this application is recommended for refusal as it is currently 
presented. This Community Council's concerns are laid out below: 
 
Traffic Access  
Existing traffic congestion in this area is already a significant problem. Members of the Community 
Council do not accept the conclusions of the Traffic Statement that the problems are temporary 
and COVID related and that the impact will not be severe. Traffic already queues (dangerously) 
onto the A465 dual carriageway during peak times presenting significant delays and access 
problems for local residents. Members noted that a traffic audit was conducted on Feb 4th 2021 
between the hours of 2pm and 3.30pm. The date and time of this audit is fundamentally flawed as 
(i) this area was under Level 4 COVID travel restrictions on Feb 4th which criminalised non-
essential travel, and (ii) would not have represented peak times for either the local fast food outlets 
and/or commuting traffic. As a minimum, this Community Council would request that the traffic 
audit is repeated at more representative date(s) and time(s) including weekends and that the 
Traffic Statement is reviewed in detail by Mon CC Highways.  
 
Parking Provision  
Members are concerned that 80 designated spaces are not sufficient. Similarly, the prospect of 
significantly increased parking requirements for large events is not adequately provided for. It is 
also noted that land designated for overflow parking is also an option for the relocation of 
allotments arising from those to be lost adjacent to Llanfoist Cemetery. Members believe there is a 

Page 12



significant risk of uncontrolled on-street parking arising from these proposals which has not been 
properly considered.  
 
Wildlife Habitat  
Members note the mitigation features included in the proposals but remain concerned that the 
simple existence of artificial lighting, mechanical and human activity is bound to have a significant 
impact on wildlife and habitat protection. This Community Council would request that 
responsibilities (both financial and practical) for mitigating these factors are clearly identified and 
agreed - something which the current proposals lack clarity on.  
 
Noise and Quality of Life for adjacent residents and Care Home residents  
The proposed hours of opening (8am to 9.30pm) raise significant concerns regarding noise and 
light pollution levels. There is a risk of a constant level of a "base load" noise associated with this 
proposal which will impact local residents and nursing/care residents of the Foxhunter Home. With 
planning permission already granted for extensive further development at Grove Farm and 
protected living bungalows near the Foxhunter these issues are exacerbated. This Community 
Council is concerned that the quality of life and amenity of local residents (of all ages) would be 
permanently deteriorated by these proposals.  
 
NRW - We continue to have concerns with the application as submitted because inadequate 
information has been provided in support of the proposal. To overcome these concerns, you 
should seek further information from the applicant regarding Foul Drainage. If this information is 
not provided, we would object to this planning application. Further details are provided below.  
 
We also advise that based on the information submitted to date, conditions regarding European 
Protected Species, Landscaping and Land Contamination should be attached to any planning 
permission granted. Without the inclusion of these conditions, we would object to this planning 
application: 
 
Condition 1: European Protected Species - Secure Implementation of Submitted Documents. 
Condition 2: European Protected Species - Conservation Plan for Great Crested Newts. 
Condition 3: European Protected Species & Landscapes - Landscape Ecological Management 
Plan 
Condition 4: European Protected Species - Biosecurity Risk Assessment 
Condition 5: European Protected Species - Ecological Compliance Audit 
Condition 6: Land Contamination - Unsuspected Contamination  
 
Protected Sites - River Usk Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) 
NRW consider the proposals have the potential to impact upon the River Usk SSSI. Providing the 
impact pathways referenced above for the SAC are adequately assessed, NRW consider the 
features of the SSSI will also be adequately safeguarded.  
 
European Protected Species - In addition to the documents we have reviewed previously, we have 
also reviewed the following documents submitted in support of the above application: 
o Amended version of the document entitled 'Summary Statement & Planning Statement', 
prepared by Owen Davies Consulting, dated December 2021.  
o Drawing entitled 'Abergavenny Velo Park, Llanfoist, - Illustrative Landscape Masterplan', 
prepared by Element Urbanism & Landscape, drawing number 1517-304, revision B, dated 
30/11/2021. 
o 'Abergavenny Velo Park Masterplan - Green Infrastructure Strategy', prepared by Element 
Urbanism & Landscape, revision 03B, dated 09/12/2021. 
o 'Land at Race Course Farm, Llanfoist, Abergavenny, Monmouthshire - Addendum to Ecology 
Strategy, prepared by Just Mammals Consultancy, dated December 2021. 
o 'Abergavenny Velo Park - Design & Access Statement', unauthored, revision A, dated 
13/12/2021. 
 
The proposals comprise the development of a cycling centre including paved track, off-road 
routes, car park, storage facility and lighting. We note the proposed amendments to the scheme 

Page 13



include the addition of a great crested newt pond within the red line boundary (in addition to the 
previously proposed mitigation ponds outside the red line but within blue  
ownership boundary); omission of street lighting within the ecologically sensitive western section of 
the circuit; provision of further information on the time limiting of lighting; removal of permanent 
newt fencing and otter tunnel from the design and the statement confirming no boundary trees will 
be removed.  
 
We consider the new information as listed above, addresses our previous concerns in relation to 
bats in trees, otters and lighting subject to the imposition of conditions listed above. 
 
Landscaping - We are satisfied that the revised planting plans have addressed our earlier 
concerns regarding the inclusion of additional large-growing species. We note the information 
provided in the planting plans are general maintenance rather than long-term management 
proposals. This does not appear to have been addressed in the submitted Green Infrastructure 
Strategy. Therefore, we recommend a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) 
should be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences. Details regarding what the LEMP should include for landscaping are referenced in 
the LEMP condition under European Protected Species above (Condition 3) 
 
Flooding - We have reviewed the FCA undertaken by HydroGeo, reference HYG637 R 201105 CB 
Abergavenny Velo Park_FCA V4, dated 12 March 2021 to provide you with technical advice on the 
acceptability of flooding consequences. Whilst our advice below shows the FCA has not 
demonstrated the risks and consequences of flooding can be managed to an acceptable level, 
recognising the nature of the application and that only the very south of the site is shown at risk of 
flooding (which appears to not have any built development within the outlines), in this instance we 
have no objection to the application as submitted in relation to flood risk. 
 
Foul Drainage - We note from the updated information (paragraph 5.1.9 Summary Statement & 
Planning Statement, amended December 2021) that a small number of portaloos will be provided 
in the parking area for daily use with additional portaloo facilities for large scale events. This 
replaces the previous proposal which relied on the nearby One Planet Environmental Education 
Centre toilet facilities. The application suggests a conservative estimate of between 10,000 and 
20,000 visitors per year.  
 
We presume the portaloos will be 'collection only systems', i.e. they won't treat wastewater, only 
collect it. If so, they are effectively a cesspit/cesspool with the waste needing to be regularly 
emptied. This is required to be done by an appropriate and registered waste carrier.  
 
The waste from collection-only systems must be taken to an authorised waste reception site or an 
authorised wastewater treatment works. On this basis, the waste could be taken to a local 
Wastewater Treatment Works(WwTW). WwTW within the Monmouthshire boundary do no not 
have phosphorus stripping facilities. This, therefore, has the potential to create a pathway to, and 
increase phosphorus loading on, a river SAC. 
 
Contaminated Land - We have reviewed the document entitled 'Proposed Velo Park, Llanfoist, 
Abergavenny, Phase I Geoenvironmental and Phase II Site Investigation Report', prepared by 
HydroGeo, document reference HYG637 R 200619 TP Abergavenny Velo Park Phase I and 
II.docx, dated June 2020 submitted in support of the above application. We note the report 
includes a wider area then red line boundary in the planning application.  The report includes the 
historic landfill to the northeast of the site and the base at the northern and eastern slopes, 
however the historic landfill is not within the red line boundary. We note from the report there is 
deep made ground present and given the adjacent landfill additional made ground/landfill material 
may be encountered during development.  If gross contamination is encountered during 
development, then a remediation strategy should be submitted to the Local Planning Authority in 
accordance with the suggested condition below to ensure if contamination is encountered it is 
appropriately dealt with. Based on the above, we would advise the following condition to be 
included on any planning permission granted by the Local Planning Authority: 
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site 
then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority) 

Page 14



shall be carried out until a remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall 
be dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
remediation strategy shall be carried out as approved.  
 
GGAT - We have consulted the regional Historic Environment Record (HER) and note the 
proposal is located in an area of archaeological potential and we have previously recommended 
archaeological mitigation for proposals in the vicinity. However, the supporting information 
submitted does not refer to archaeological remains or designations and therefore no consideration 
has been made concerning any physical impact on buried archaeological remains, or any potential 
indirect, visual impact of the proposed development. As a result there is insufficient information 
presented to allow an informed decision to be made regarding the archaeological resource. In 
order to ascertain the impact that the development will have on the archaeological resource, a 
suitably qualified archaeologist should initially prepare an archaeological desk-based assessment 
of the current knowledge of the archaeological resource in the application area in order for the 
impact of the proposed development to be determined and to allow informed mitigation measures 
to be proposed.  
 
MCC Highways - The highway authority has considered the supporting information submitted in 
support, particularly the Transport Statement , the Draft Site User & Management Plan and 
associated layout plans. 
 
Site Accessibility; 
The highway authority considers the location to be a reasonable sustainable location accessible by 
pedestrians and cyclists and within reasonable distance from bus and rail transport provision. 
 
Highway Safety / Traffic Impact / Traffic Distribution: 
The highway authority has considered the impact of the development on the immediate highway 
network and agree that the anticipated increase in traffic generated by the development are not 
considered to be that significant and would not be detrimental to the safety and capacity of the 
immediate highway network. 
 
Means of Access; 
Access to the proposal will be via Council maintained road that currently provides access to the 
Councils recycling centre and waste transfer station. 
 
Parking Provision; 
Generally, the parking provision is considered to be acceptable for the day to day use of the facility 
and it is acknowledged that larger events on the site specific traffic and site management 
measures will be introduced as detailed in the Event Management Plan. 
 
The proposed development will not lead to a real deterioration in highway safety or capacity on the 
immediate local network, and offers no objection in principle subject to suitably worded condition; 
No development shall commence until detailed design and safety audits have been submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority for the construction of the means of access from the 
Council’s maintained access road. 
 
MCC Rights of Way - In accordance with Welsh Office Circular 32/92 Footpaths 71 and 73 in the 
community of Llanfoist which run through the site have been marked on the application plans. The 
plans also identify that the paths need to be diverted to accommodate the proposed development. 
The applicant will therefore need to apply for a path order. 
Importantly, path orders are subject to legal tests and public consultation and are not guaranteed 
to succeed. Additionally, guidance states "the effect of development on a public right of way is a 
material consideration in the determination of applications for planning permission and authorities 
should ensure that the potential consequences are taken into account whenever such applications 
are considered. 
 
Note the application looks to replace the existing stiles into the site with kissing gates and 
identifies the potential for improved footpath linkages to residential area. In accordance with 
MCC's least restrictive policy and The Active Travel Act MCC would prefer to see Footpath 71 

Page 15



given multiuser status and the stiles replaced with gaps. If this is not possible gates rather than 
kissing gates would be preferable. It would seem sensible to upgrade the status of a footpath to a 
cycling facility to allow the use of cycles. 
 
If consent is granted, no temporary closure to allow permanent development works to take place 
on the paths will be issued until the path order has reached confirmation stage. This is because at 
this point it will have been determined that any changes to the paths alignment in principle are 
acceptable. Importantly, if the path order is acceptable the new path alignments will need to 
remain available and free to use at all times. It is unlikely that they could be closed during a 
spectator event for example. 
 
MCC Biodiversity - Holding objection pending the submission of further information. This 
information has been received to the satisfaction of NRW. No further comments received from 
MCC Biodiversity at the time of preparing this report. 
 
MCC Landscape/Green Infrastructure - No objections subject to conditions. 
The applicant has undertaken an LVIA and there is sufficient information relating to the 
assessment methodology and assessment of the likely visual impact on an appropriate range of 
receptor locations to be able to support the further design stages.  
 
The applicant has undertaken a GI assets and opportunities assessment to inform a GI Masterplan 
and GI Strategy as informed and guided by the MCC GI SPG. The assessment and LVIA have 
informed an illustrative landscape masterplan 1517-304 rev A and subsequent landscape plans 1-
3 for the site. 
 
From a landscape and GI perspective the amendments as detailed in the application covering 
letter are broadly acceptable from a GI and landscape perspective where relevant. 
 
Based on the amended current proposals for the construction of a 1km closed road cycle track, 
vehicle access and car parking it is considered, from a landscape and GI perspective, will not have 
a significant detrimental impact on the character, appearance and intrinsic values of the localised 
and wider valued landscape, provisions of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11) February 2021 and 
Policies S13 and LC5 of the MCC Adopted LDP 2011-2021. 
 
MCC SAB - We believe the proposed scheme will require a sustainable drainage system designed 
in accordance with the Welsh Government Standards for sustainable drainage. The scheme will 
require approval by the SuDS Approving Body (SAB) prior to any construction work commencing. 
The SAB is granted a period of at least seven weeks to determine applications. SuDS approval is 
required if the total construction area of your development is 100m² or more. Total construction 
area is defined as anything that covers land (inclusive of driveways, patios, parking areas etc.). It 
also includes any construction work that replaces an existing building. 
 
SEWBREC Search Results - Records of Great Crested Newts, Bats and Otters recorded within 
the vicinity of the site.  
 
5.2 Neighbour Notification 
 
Twenty five representations received in support of the application: 
 

 Abergavenny has a thriving cycling culture which would further benefit from a facility like 
this, providing a safe environment for younger riders in particular. 

 Help achieve active travel goals. 

 This would be amazing for Abergavenny, with such amazing cycling in the area this can 
only help increase Abergavenny as a cycling community.  

 I would certainly hope to make use of it and also my young family in the future.  

 With a young family living around the corner to the proposed site this is the type of forward 
thinking facility that is needed. Cycling is a booming leisure and tourism activity, but more 
facilities are needed to help train our children (and adults less confident on a bike) in a safe 
off road environment.  

Page 16



 Abergavenny rightfully has a growing reputation as a cycling hot spot, and this facility will 
only help cement this reputation. 

 What an amazing idea. A great asset for the town. Well done all involved. 

 Further encouragement for people to get into cycling and out of their cars.  

 The design appears to sit well in the landscape and the high quality landscape design with 
native planting and wildflower areas look like a significant enhancement to the site.  

 Excellent idea that will encourage more sport and visitors in Abergavenny.  

 Abergavenny has an amazing road cycling club and at the heart of that is the off road club 
morning they run every week in the grounds at king Henry school. King Henry school plan 
to enlarge and the large cycling area (also used for sports) will become part of the new 
school build, gone forever to the cycle club. As such I believe that the velo park application 
should be viewed along with the school application i.e. if new school goes ahead the velo 
park definitely should too as there is no alternative venue for the bike club. 

 It's about time that the young people were of Abergavenny were given somewhere to cycle, 
enjoying themselves, learning at the same time. Everything in Abergavenny seems to be 
about old folk and nothing for the youngsters.  

 At a time where we have seen an increase in cycling, providing the infrastructure to support 
it is vital. 

 We have an obesity crisis in our country and having safe cycling routes can help 
encourage new cyclists to get more exercise. 

 The design is very environmentally thoughtful and has taken important steps to protect and 
sustain biodiversity. 

 This will pass on a great legacy for future generations and should be supported. 

 This is a fantastic facility for Welsh cycling (beginner to professional) and the public. We 
need modern cycling facilities to enable Welsh cyclists to compete on a global level and to 
enable more of the public to engage and have access to cycling. 

 My son is a young Maindy Flyer and hopes to compete professionally having such a facility 
would be of great benefit and support Welsh & British cycling members. 

 Cycling is a fantastic sport for all and we need to provide greater access to such a healthy 
sport. 

 The park would provide multipurpose amenities for cyclists and generate additional income 
for the local community. 

 I think this is forward thinking and exactly what we need, to encourage children to have a 
safe environment to learn, enjoy and develop cycling skills. 

 As a family of cyclists (of varying abilities) we have found the lack of cycling provision in 
Monmouthshire particularly frustrating, especially for younger children seeking to develop 
their skills in a safe traffic free environment.  

 This facility would be a huge benefit to the Monmouthshire community whilst having 
minimal impact on the natural environment.  

 Having visited several of these velo parks across the UK the proposed location is one of 
the best I've seen. Its proximity to the town centre makes it easily accessible and a real 
boon to its use.  

 To have this sort of facility in an area other than a 'big' city is forward thinking and will 
benefit the local businesses as it would allow large races to be held thus bringing people 
into the area. You only need to look at the Abergavenny cycling festival to see the number 
who children who attend these events from further afield.  

 It's good to see within the plans the wild meadows and wetland areas to benefit the local 
wildlife. 

 I hope the planning department will view this development favourably as it will provide a 
great facility for children in the immediate and nearby localities. 

 I don't feel that buildings that have only just been built should have a great right to block 
this proposal, it was not long ago that those buildings become blots on other peoples view.  

 I think that this is the type of facility that would be quiet for nearly all the time. The larger 
cycle events they hold would be infrequent and i am sure that club days would not cause 
significant traffic, at the present club days there was minimal traffic with lots opting to cycle 
there.  

 Some of the residents of the home might even like to see cyclists going round the tracks 
being people powered they would be very quiet. 

Page 17



 As a business owner, I have seen the benefits to the local economies of MTB and other 
cycling centres around the UK and wondered why such a passionate area for cycling 
(Abergavenny) does not have its own specialist local cycling facilities. 

 As a volunteer for many years, at Abergavenny Road Club, I have seen the huge benefits 
that cycling has had in the community. Children starting their first coached sessions at a 
very young age and just making friends, exercising and having fun or being inspired to race 
at National and International levels. If our cycling club was able to access this facility then it 
would provide endless opportunities to develop young cycling talent and promote healthy 
lifestyle and conscious environmental decisions.  

 I am hugely supportive of this application and feel that it is something that should proceed 
extremely quickly given the huge impact that Covid has had on young people and young 
people involved in sport. 

 I have had the opportunity to take part in events at both Stratford velo park and Redbridge 
cycling centre. These events are incredibly popular with new cyclists who would normally 
avoid events on roads because of the dangers of cars. During the pandemic there has 
been a massive uptake in cycling, this track would be perfectly timed to take advantage of 
this. 

 
Nine objections received: 
 

 As the CEO of Dormy Care Communities and a Director of Foxhunters Estates, I strongly 
object to this development: Foxhunters Care Community is situated on Iberis Road and is 
home for up to 70 ladies and gentlemen. The development of 24 bungalows adjacent to the 
care home is about to commence which will provide 24 bungalows for the over 55 age 
group ad will offer housing with support. The traffic is already a problem with there often 
being over 50 cars leading to McDonalds. This would no doubt increase and cause traffic 
build up on the bypass which is already badly affected. The planned lighting of the scheme 
would pollute the care home and the bungalows. Noise will also be a problem with the 
closing time being as planned. With so many other locations available in Monmouthshire, 
this does not fit in with the local infrastructure and would create nuisance to existing and 
future home owners. 

 As my property looks out onto the proposed site, I cannot support this in its current state. 
The lighting solution stated will greatly affect my property, as the 5m high flood lights will 
cause light pollution and disrupt the local wildlife (we have many bats and other nocturnal 
animals).  

 Currently at weekends, there is congestion that backs onto the roundabout and slip lane 
and there have been several accidents on that stretch of road. 

 If the site had solar powered, low level lighting and a dedicated slip lane to divert traffic 
from the existing slip lane, then this would be much better. 

 Race day and weekend traffic will gridlock Llanfoist roads and visitor parking will likely 
impact residents. There needs to be assurances that any events will be marshalled and 
locals will be protected. 

 Llanfoist is a wonderful area and I fully support projects like this, but I do not think the 
proposed site is the correct location for this amenity. 

 Adding a further facility in this area, without suitable consideration of its impact on the 
surrounding infrastructure does not seem a feasible plan. 

 A wildlife conservation area was established by Monmouthshire County Council adjacent to 
the location of The Foxhunter Residential Home, Ffordd Sain Ffwyst and the proposed velo 
park site. This is now well populated by a variety of bird species, amphibians and insect 
life. The disturbance caused by construction and operation of the cycle track would drive 
away the bird species and the pond would become a refuse dumping are for the attenders 
of the track. 

 Extra slow moving traffic will cause a considerable increase in local air pollution. 

 The level of noise and light pollution produced during construction and operation of this 
proposed cycle track will cause an unacceptable degradation of the living environment to 
the residents of Ffordd Sain Ffwyst and The Foxhunter residential complex.  

Page 18



 At present we look out onto open fields and woodland and the main reason for moving here 
was statements by the developers that there would be no further developments in this 
area.  

 Due to the proximity of the track to Ffordd Sain Ffwyst we believe that there would be a 
problem with people parking there. 

 We are directly on the boundary of the Western field, the closest property to the 
development. If this goes ahead, could we expect a form of compensation for the residents 
of Ffordd Sain Ffwyst? 

 Believe the Planning Committee should undertake a site visit in order to understand our 
concerns. And to see the topography for themselves. 

 No attention has been given to the concerns of most of us facing the proposed velo park 
from regarding the hours of operation and the potential nuisance value of the park being 
open from 08:00 to 21:30 day in, day out.  

 The presence of humans on the site, potentially from 08:00 to 21:30 every day, is without 
doubt going to have an adverse effect on all the wildlife here, in particular the various 
species of waterfowl that are here. I doubt the herons will visit any more, nor the Canada 
geese.  

 This spring and summer I have heard, for the first time since moving here in 2017, skylarks 
singing, indicating that they are nesting in the grassy areas that will be used for the velo 
park. 

 No one can pretend that the velo park is going to respect the current fauna in the area. It 
will definitely have a detrimental effect. 

 Traffic will be further increased by the 2 already approved housing developments in 
Llanfoist (Foxhunter and The Grove) when complete, and are not factored into projections 
because the traffic survey was undertaken 16 months ago. 

 There are only 80 vehicle parking spaces planned on the Velo park site, which again for 
events such as competitions etc. appears totally inadequate for peaks of activity.  

 The proposal is to use an adjacent field for overspill parking. As the report states this field 
can only be used during dry summer months; the velo park is planned to be in operation 
throughout the year, so for the majority of the year the adjacent overspill car park will not 
be usable. 

 The proposed alternative overspill car park is to use the car park of Llanfoist Primary 
School, which has spaces for 52 cars. This will therefore inevitably have to be used for the 
majority of the year when on site velo park car parking is full. 

 The access to the school is through a housing estate, which is completely unsuitable for 
large numbers of vehicles; this is a family estate with lots of small children playing outside. 
It could also prevent many users of the school attending community classes in the evening 
or at weekends, due to being unable to park when the school is in use as an overspill car 
park. 

 These concerns could be easily resolved by increasing the number of planned on site car 
parking spaces at the velo park so that overspill parking is not required. There is ample 
space to achieve this increase in on-site parking. 

 As it is, local residents cannot access their own homes due to being stuck in giant queues 
at peak times throughout the week. Llanfoist's already stretched infrastructure simply could 
not cope with any more users.  

 Most walkers and cyclists would have to cross the Llanfoist bridge over the river Usk in 
order to access the site from Abergavenny. This bridge is very dangerous. The result of 
this is that local users will most likely drive to the facility thus exacerbating the traffic issues 
above (not to mention visitors from outside the local area!). Public transport to the site is 
non-existent either.  

 It is my understanding that the allotments currently located at Llanfoist Cemetery need to 
be relocated by law and the preferred site is alongside the proposed car park for the track. 
Is this land also not earmarked as overflow car parking needed for larger events? If users 
can't utilise the allotment land then where do they park? It also goes without saying that 
visitors would probably end up parking on local streets which would further inconvenience 
local residents unless some sort of marshalling system was provided by event organisers.  

 There are a number of protected species living on the site, including bats, great crested 
newts, otters and grass snakes. The development would devastate their natural habitat. It 

Page 19



is my understanding that the proposed site in Gilwern was abandoned due to the presence 
of bats. Why is this site not being granted a similar reprieve? There are more protected 
species here; it makes no sense.  

 The development would cause a huge visual impact to residents living in close proximity in 
Ffordd Sain Ffwyst and Foxhunters Care Home. Open rolling fields full of fauna and wildlife 
are to be replaced by 6m wide tarmac roads and tall lampposts which will look unsightly. 
Also light pollution at night time.  

 The proposed facility has the propensity to generate noise in close vicinity of people's 
houses for up to 13 hours a day, 7 days a week, 364 days a year. This will be a nuisance 
and will affect the peaceful enjoyment of residents' properties. The character of the area is 
very peaceful at the moment and the proposed development would no doubt impact on 
this, especially during races (supporters etc.) especially if there was a tannoy system.  

 Users will be able to see into those properties closest to the development.  

 On studying comparative cycle tracks across the UK it is evident that this layout is 
indulgent in the utilisation of land. In this case; green unspoilt land. The Llanfoist design 
takes up too much ground over generous bends and the use of straight lengths. It all feels 
unnecessary when the proposal could be compacted onto/into an area half that which is 
occupied here. 

 This particular track design is a wasteful excess, building again upon green pasture land 
which is better left to more natural environmentally friendly use. I propose a more economic 
layout of the same length be considered immediately, if not abandoned all together in 
favour of natural wildlife. 

 How much will all of this cost to build and run? Surely MCC have more pressing things to 
spend money on at the moment.  

 
General comments/suggestions: 
 

 I believe it would be good to include a skateboard park and facility at the site and/or include 
a capacity to use the planned track for a wider purpose than just bicycles; in particular 
skateboarders. 

 I note the report on otters in the area, it would be excellent to accommodate these 
marvellous beasts in the eventual site design so as to minimise disturbance to them. 

 Moving from London to South Wales has made me aware of the awful "car culture" that 
exists here. Many people do not believe you cannot live here without a car, and in turn 
even the shortest trips are taken in a car. I believe that cycling infrastructure like this is 
essential for combating this way of thinking.  

 Gravel/all road cycling is a very popular type of riding where routes are move off road, and 
use bikes with larger more capable tyres. Potentially it is an opportunity to create a gravel 
track. This would make sense in an area of Wales littered with gravel tracks. It would also 
take advantage of this current interest in gravel cycling. Also I would imagine a gravel track 
would be less expensive to build and also less energy intensive and potentially one of the 
first in its kind. 

 
5.3 Other Representations 
 
Welsh Cycling:  
 
Welsh Cycling would like to formally express their support for the proposed velo park cycling 
facility in the Abergavenny area. 
The velo park will make a significant difference not just to local cycling clubs but to all residents in 
the surrounding area by making physical activity more accessible and increasing their 
opportunities to develop healthy lifestyles. As well as making cycling safer and easier, the facility 
will support the promotion of cycling for leisure, tourism, club and school activities and enable 
national and regional level racing to take place. 
 
The inclusion of features that attract a wide range of users including families, recreational cyclists 
and competitors will help to maximise the use of the facility. The design also allows for other sports 
such as running and roller skiing and use by wheelchairs and adapted bikes therefore further 
increasing the number of potential users. 

Page 20



 
The development of the velo park will allow Monmouthshire to enhance its national and 
international reputation for cycle sport and tourism. It will also provide the ideal environment to 
help develop the champions of tomorrow. This facility has the potential to play a significant role in 
achieving the overarching vision of Welsh Cycling of 'Inspiring Wales to Cycle'. It delivers against 
our two main strategy strands of 'More people cycling more often' and a 'Performance programme 
that maximises riders' potential'. 
 
Abergavenny & District Civic Society: 
 
We welcomed the proposal in principle and continue to do so; it appears to broadly satisfy most 
LDP considerations, though we sympathise with local concerns, especially about traffic, and hope 
that those concerns will be carefully assessed.  
 
The Pre-Application Consultation report unfortunately makes no direct reference to our comments 
and concerns. These are presumably subsumed in the short Section 9 and covered by 'to be 
addressed in the planning application', an unhelpful way of dealing with the need for the report to 
say how the comments made have been considered when finalising the application. Section 4 of 
the Summary Statement and Planning Statement summarises the applicant's response to matters 
raised. Only some small changes and additions to details appear to have been made to the 
proposals as a result of consultation. There are a number of matters that we still feel need to be 
taken into account:  
 
1 The latest normal site closing time has become 21.30 rather than 21.00.  
2 The applicant has not specifically responded to our concern about noise impact on the 
Foxhunter nursing/care home. Woodland planting will take some years to muffle such disturbance. 
We note the owners' concern about this and about traffic and lighting.  
3 Concern about traffic congestion has been set aside by an unsubstantiated belief that it is 
temporary and Covid-related. The Transport Statement concludes that the impact of the proposal 
will be 'not severe' but the evidence of local residents suggests that the velo park will aggravate a 
severe problem when fast food and cycling event traffic peaks coincide. We hope that the 
Statement will be reviewed carefully and critically with your Highways section before making 
recommendations on the application. Our suggestion of an alternative access via the care home 
access road might not help this problem and has presumably been rejected, but it would be helpful 
to read the reasons.  
4 As recognised by the applicant, the improvement of cycling access to the site from the wider 
Abergavenny and Llanfoist area would probably significantly reduce the car traffic generated.  
5 The proposal takes no account of the likelihood that access to the site at all times on foot via 
public rights of way will generate uncontrolled on-street parking in the vicinity by spectators. 
Temporary PROW closures may be agreed but these should be infrequent for major events.  
6 We believe that the pond south of the care home and the semi-wooded area between the school 
and Ffordd Sain Ffwyst may also be owned by the County Council, suggesting that the wildlife 
management of the velo park and these areas should be brought together and adequately 
resourced.  
 
Abergavenny Road Club: 
 
The club has promoted all aspects of cycling for over 30 years, with a particular regard to youth 
development. Typically, over 100 local children are encouraged through organised coaching 
activity each year an excellent way of improving children health and wellbeing. Re-development of 
the towns Leisure Centre site means the club will lose their facility in the near future having a 
traffic free venue to develop children is essential for safety and there is a genuine risk to coaching 
activities if an alternative is not identified. The proposed velo park is an ideal solution. Its purpose-
built nature would allow the club to further expand activities, including provision for adults and 
people with disabilities through the use of adapted cycles. Ideas for adults include mother & 
toddler sessions, women specific sessions and general, structured adult sessions with a focus on 
involving local residents. Abergavenny Road Club regularly access grants to support the training of 
volunteers, ensuring such activities are feasible and would help maximise use of the proposed 
velo park 

Page 21



 
Abergavenny Cycle Group: Members of Abergavenny Cycle Group are excited about the prospect 
of a new off-road cycling facility in Llanfoist: 
 
Benefits to the local community  
Aside from its primary purpose as a circuit for bike racing, ACG believes the velo park offers great 
potential for recreational cycling, learning to cycle and safe, pleasant exercise in the outdoors. A 
closed circuit with a good surface is a safe place for parents and guardians to teach young 
children to ride a bike, and a place for older children and adults to improve their skills and gain 
confidence. Off-road cycle trails and walking paths are an added attraction.  
 
We also see the scope for exhibition and demonstration events to be held at the velo park. These 
might include events organised by bike retailers where prospective customers can test ride bikes 
before purchasing. Elsewhere this has proven to be promote the uptake of electric assist bikes to 
replace local car journeys. E-bikes are relatively new products, and are a significantly more 
expensive investment than a traditional bicycle. Yet there is a huge interest in this new form of low-
carbon, low impact personal transportation and uptake is growing every year.  
 
The velo park also has the potential to be a hub for a wide range of cycling activities and events in 
the area, from teach-ins and workshops to social rides and other get-togethers. There is also 
scope for other human-powered activities - such as hand-cycles and scooters. We also see the 
potential for a bicycle recycling facility as a partnership between the velo park and the One Planet 
Centre / MCC Household Waste Recycling Centre. This could involve reconditioning discarded 
bicycles and resale to local people at fair prices.   
 
The complex topography and high nature value of the site does present challenges in design and 
construction but we believe the presence of natural features such as ponds, wetlands, wildlife 
habitats and the varied topography enhances the attractiveness of the site for recreational 
activities. The project team has put a lot of input into this aspect of the development and we 
believe it will be managed in a sympathetic way, to increase the amenity value of a location that 
sees very few visitors at present. 
 
The plans for the facility include a large area set aside for car parking. We understand that for elite 
level racing events, competitors may be traveling large distances by car but we hope that as many 
local visitors as possible will come by bike. It would be a bitter irony if a cycling facility contributed 
to further increases of motor traffic on local roads: road danger and high traffic volumes are the 
main reason more people don't cycle and walk to get around. We would like to see the site itself, 
and the surrounding areas be as accessible to visitors arriving by bike as possible. This will require 
genuine commitment by the velo park project team in partnership with the planning, highways and 
active travel officers of Monmouthshire County Council.  
 
The development of Llanfoist over the past few decades has been characterised by a lack of 
coherent planning, and an almost complete absence of planning for active travel. It's been very 
much 'car first' - up to and including developments that are currently underway. This is despite 
clear government messages on active travel, including in official Planning Policy Wales guidance 
and Active Travel Act Design Guidance, and MCC's own recognition of a climate emergency and 
the pressing need to increase the modal share of sustainable and active travel in the county.  
 
The velo park's own analysis of active travel routes in its pre-planning submission found that none 
of existing routes to the site meet the standards of safety required by the Active Travel (Wales) 
Act. This is not a shortcoming of the velo park development per se, rather a legacy of poor 
decisions in the development of Llanfoist.  We hope that the velo park development, and all future 
developments in Llanfoist, will do a better job of providing safe, direct and pleasant routes for 
active travel, and placing the car at the lowest priority within the sustainable transport hierarchy. 
 
We would like to see a safe cycle route connecting the site with Merthyr Road (already part of 
MCC's Active Travel Integrated Network). Our preferred option is via the existing footpath route 
just to the south of the road access to the McDonalds / Costa Coffee / Premier Inn / Recycling 
Centre, a route which has heavy traffic and no cycle infrastructure (see map below).  

Page 22



This will enable visitors by bike from Llanfoist and neighbouring settlements of Govilon and 
Gilwern (via the ex-railway line cycle route NCR 46). We are pleased to see that the velo park site 
plan already provides for a separate entrance for cyclists and pedestrians at this point of access.  
All that is required is the upgrading of the existing footpath to a cycleway. We hope that this can be 
agreed as a precondition for the approval of the velo park planning application. Cycle travel to and 
from Abergavenny remains problematic, with plans for a new active travel bridge over the Usk on 
hold, and the absence of cycle infrastructure on the B4246: a four-lane road with two busy 
roundabouts connecting to the A465 Heads of the Valleys dual carriageway.  
 
Until those problems are addressed, cycle access from Abergavenny to the velo park will be very 
much 'for confident cyclists only'. It is hard to imagine many parents would allow younger children 
to cycle from Abergavenny to the site. Installing high quality cycle infrastructure along this 
important travel corridor should become a highest priority for future investments in active travel in 
Monmouthshire.  
 
5.4 Local Member Representations 
 
Cllr G Howard - Wishes to withhold any views about the pros and cons of the scheme, due to 
sitting on the planning committee, so will save observations until whichever meeting it is 
presented.  
 
Please note all representations can be read in full on the Council's website: 
https://planningonline.monmouthshire.gov.uk/online-applications/?lang=EN 
 
6.0 EVALUATION 
 
6.1 Principle of Development 
 
In Monmouthshire, there is a commitment to increase the accessibility and quality of physical 
activity opportunities for all residents, with the aim of supporting healthy lifestyles for its residents 
and allowing them to achieve their sporting potential. The Monmouthshire PSB's Well-being Plan 
is concerned with creating an active and healthy Monmouthshire, supporting children and young 
people, and promoting volunteering. The 'Creating an Active & Healthy Monmouthshire Plan' 
identifies ambitious but achievable opportunities to make more people more active. 
 
Whilst there are no existing purpose-built facilities, an area of the Abergavenny Leisure 
Centre/King Henry VIII School site has been used by Abergavenny Road Club as its base for 
coaching, training and events for over 10 years. However, this area is likely to be redeveloped as 
part of the school’s modernisation programme and therefore lost as a cycling facility. There is 
therefore an established need for a replacement and purpose-built cycling facility for the local 
cycling network. 
 
The adopted LDP indicates the site is positioned outside of the development boundary; however, it 
is not safeguarded as a Green Wedge. The pond area is protected as an Area of Amenity 
Importance (LDP Policy DES2). The area of the existing Waste Recycling Centre and the land 
located between McDonald's and the One Planet Centre has been protected as a Waste Site. 
Recent developments include a Re-use Shop on land adjacent to the Waste Recycling Centre 
near to the entrance to the site. Planning permission was also granted in 2018 for 120 residential 
dwellings and open space to the south on land at Grove Farm and the construction of 26 
residential dwellings on the site adjacent to the Foxhunter Care Home. The site is bounded to the 
west by DES2 area of amenity importance which consists of pond and associated habitats. Part of 
the eastern area of the site is within C2 flood plain related to the nearby River Usk. 
 
The site predominantly bounds the eastern edge of the Llanfoist settlement boundary and is partly 
within the settlement boundary at the northern entrance of the application site. This part of the site 
is also within current LDP SAE1 employment site. A proportion of the site is also within LDP SAW1 
(ii) potential waste management site. 
 

Page 23

https://planningonline.monmouthshire.gov.uk/online-applications/?lang=EN


LDP Policy S5 allows for Community and Recreation Facilities Development proposals that 
provide and/or enhance community and recreation facilities to be permitted within or adjoining 
town and village development boundaries subject to detailed planning considerations. The policy 
also requires new facilities to have good access to public transport, as well as being within 
walkable distance to as many homes as possible. It is considered that the proposal satisfies this 
policy with the site being adjacent to settlement boundary of Llanfoist which is itself on a regular 
bus route. The site is also located within 1.5 miles of Abergavenny Town Centre, approximately 25 
minutes walking / 10 minutes cycling distance.  
 
The proposed use of the land as a sports and recreation area is therefore considered to be 
acceptable within a planning policy context. 
 
6.2 Sustainability 
 
6.2.1 Good Design 
 
The design of the proposed site reflects the suitability of the terrain for a mix of different cycling 
facilities built around a core closed road circuit (CRC) together with cyclocross and introduction 
level mountain biking. The built development includes: 
o A 6m wide circuit that is 1.13km long with 41m of ascent per lap.  
o The main circuit is 0.91km long with 35m of ascent (excluding the western loop) with street 
lighting that allows winter and evening activity to take place. 
o A 250m start and finish straight suitable for regional and national events with a finish line shelter 
for timekeepers and officials. 
o A series of recreational trails located within and alongside the CRC that encourages recreational 
cycling as well as cyclocross  
and entry-level mountain biking. 
o Three shipping containers are located within the car park and adjoining the One Planet Centre 
for the storage of cycling equipment for Welsh Cycling and local clubs. 
 
The existing boundaries and edges are a key asset in terms of ecological and landscape value. 
The proposed Green Infrastructure Strategy proposes to reinforce these elements to create 
substantial continuous hedge-lines and woodland belts that will expand and connect habitats, and 
provide landscape enhancement and visual screening.  It is considered that the visual impact of 
the development will be reduced by the proposed planting and by the detailed layout of elements 
such as lighting (including omission of lighting for the western area) and the screen planting in 
response to local landscape character. For those effects that remain, it is considered that they are 
balanced by the positive change that will be introduced as a result of the development. 
 
The siting of the car parking area and storage area adjacent to the One Planet Centre will help to 
minimise the visual impact of parked cars and the shipping containers. 
 
Overall, it is therefore considered that the proposed development will not harm the visual amenity 
of the area and meets the requirements of LDP Policy DES1. 
 
6.2.2 Green Infrastructure 
 
From a Green Infrastructure (GI) perspective it is considered that the application has integrated GI 
throughout the overall scheme at the same time as providing the development. The scheme has 
sought to protect and enhance existing biodiversity capital and integrate with existing and new GI 
corridors linking to boundaries and to the wider landscape. 
 
Within the immediate vicinity of the site, there are a number of significant GI assets including the 
tree lined River Usk and its floodplain, the overgrown pond and associated marginal habitat to the 
west, two small ponds within the adjacent farms, and several mature tree groupings along the 
boundaries of the floodplain fields to the east. 
 
Two public rights of way cross the site. A north/south footpath enters the site between the northern 
edge of the pond and the care home. From here, the path runs in a south easterly direction 

Page 24



towards Racecourse Farm and beyond, to cross Monmouthshire Golf Course. A second footpath 
runs in a broadly east-west direction passing the southern boundary of the Llanfoist Fawr Primary 
School and continuing to cross the site and join with the north/south footpath at Racecourse Farm. 
Currently a dense bank of brambles blocks the linkage between the care home and the site at the 
boundary. The proposals include the diversion of the two public rights of way and additional new 
connecting routes. Increased accessibility is also supported through the installation of pedestrian 
gates, well-constructed paths and gentle gradients where possible.  
The experience of visiting the area will therefore be enhanced through substantial improvements 
to the integrity of the landscape and provision for informal recreation including seating, informal 
play, a pond viewing platform and interpretation features. 
 
There is an existing footpath order, which is awaiting certification, for Footpath 71 and Footpath 
73. The order will see Footpath 71 slightly amended from the application site’s boundary to the 
rear of Foxhunters Care Community and other developments off Iberis Road. Footpath 73 is 
sought to be redirected to account for further residential development.  
 
Opportunities for environmental education and community involvement in the management of the 
site is an important benefit of the proposed development and directly linked to the use of the 
adjoining One Planet Environmental Education Centre. 
 
Landscape aftercare prescriptions in the form of maintenance schedules capable of being rolled 
over annually for 5 years would be welcome. In addition, a GI management plan based on the 
most recent layout, planting plans and GI strategy would be required. This can be provided prior to 
commencement of development via a condition should Members be minded to approve the 
application.  
 
Subject to this condition, it is considered that the proposed development will provide new green 
infrastructure that can be enjoyed by both users of the track and the wider community and 
therefore the proposal meets the requirements of LDP Policy GI1. 
 
6.3 Landscape 
 
The site is located within the low-lying landscape which sits just above the floodplain of the River 
Usk, adjacent to the urban edges of Llanfoist and Abergavenny and the transport corridors of the 
A465 and A40. The wider setting includes the upland areas of the Brecon Beacons National Park 
and the Blaenavon Industrial Landscape World Heritage Site.  
 
The site itself covers an area of approximately 2 ha and is currently managed as a mixture of 
scrub and grazing which is subdivided into small paddocks. The site's topography is heavily 
undulated with a high point to its centre, falling both north and south and most steeply towards the 
River Usk floodplain. 
 
The most notable existing vegetation comprises native boundary hedgerows interspersed with 
hedgerow trees, together with a small group of 'Category C' trees including an over-mature Ash in 
the centre of the site and a mature Oak adjacent to the care home. The majority of the site's 
hedgerows have not been managed in recent times and have become  
over-mature and gappy. The remainder of the site consists of semi-improved grassland with areas 
of encroaching scrub, particularly in the north of the site.  
 
The site is visible from the nearby World Heritage Site, the public right of way that cross and run 
parallel to the site, recently built residential areas, care home and residential areas to the south 
west of the site. The Agricultural Land Class (ALC) is predominantly predictive grade 2 with a 
small area to the south of the site predictive ALC 3b. The site accommodates an underground 
high-pressure strategic utility and is in the vicinity of overhead cables. 
 
Much of the site is in open countryside. The site is within the Upper Usk valley Landscape 
Character Assessment (LCA) described as a flat, river valley floodplain, of alluvium soils flanked 
by low river terraces of sand and gravels. It is a landscape of outstanding ecological interest 
identified as a rare example of a large mesotrophic lowland river. Small enclaves of wetland 

Page 25



habitats are particularly important and are found along the lower Usk floodplain below 
Abergavenny. Large fields of arable crops and improved pasture dominate. It is an open 
landscape, enclosure provided only by low intensively managed hedges, in places replaced by 
post and wire fencing, individual field trees, hedgerow trees and linear tree belts with sinuous lines 
of willow and alder, following water courses. The inclusion of the River Usk SSSI/SAC within the 
area, whilst only taking up 5% of the LCA land area emphasises the Landscape Habitat 
importance of this LCA. An analysis of the relevant sensitivity appraisals from LANDMAP 
information indicates that the LCA has been evaluated as; 
 
Visual and Sensory; 4% Outstanding, 90% High 
Landscape Habitats; 5% Outstanding 
Historic Landscape; 7% Outstanding, 89% High 
Cultural; 36% Outstanding 64% High 
 
The landscape planting plans have provided a comprehensive detailing of landscaping to provide 
mitigation as requested, habitat enhancements and diversity and well as effective habitat 
connectivity. The plant specifications of species, size, density and numbers are acceptable from a 
landscape and GI perspective. 
 
Policy LC1 of the LDP (New Built Development in the Open Countryside) and Policy LC5 
(Protection and Enhancement of Landscape Character) highlight that development will be 
permitted provided it would not have an unacceptable adverse effect on the special character or 
quality of Monmouthshire's landscape in terms of its visual, historic, geological, ecological or 
cultural aspects. Based on the assessments and information provided, it is considered that the 
proposed development and associated landscape mitigation will not have a significant adverse 
visual impact on the landscape character and its setting. The proximity to existing undulating 
landform, associated with nearby built development and infrastructure provides an opportunity to 
integrate the fragmented settlement edge more effectively into the wider landscape. On this basis 
it is considered that the proposed development meets the requirements of LDP Policies LC1 and 
LC5. 
 
6.4 Historic Environment 
 
GGAT have advised that the supporting information submitted does not refer to archaeological 
remains or designations and therefore no consideration has been made concerning any physical 
impact on buried archaeological remains, or any potential indirect, visual impact of the proposed 
development. The applicant has confirmed that the Historical Environmental Records (HER) were 
examined and did not identify any archaeological remains relating to the application site or the 
immediately adjoining land that may be physically altered by the development.  On this basis it is 
considered that any archaeological features within the site itself would be minor in nature and an 
appropriately worded planning condition and watching brief would be appropriate on this occasion. 
 
6.5 Biodiversity 
 
A Great Crested Newt survey submitted with the application concluded based on the evidence 
found, that it is likely that there is a moderate population present. In accordance with the 
recommendations of this survey, a scheme has been designed which ensures that suitable high 
quality features will be included that will be managed and monitored adequately by MCC. 
Amphibian underpasses will be installed under the track, hibernation and safe haven opportunities 
will be provided inside the track, and the remaining grasslands quality maintained and improved.  
 
Bat activity was noted as occurring principally along the dark fringes of the site which are made up 
of hedgerows and tree-lines and are planned for retention.  
 
In contrast with other outdoor sports facilities, cycling circuits do not require floodlighting but the 
track will require street lighting that extends the use of the facility for coaching and training into 
evening and during the winter months. It should be noted that presently, British Cycling regulations 
do not allow racing and competitions to take place under street lighting and so this type of event 
will not happen during the hours of darkness. The ecological surveys have established the 

Page 26



presence of bats and reptiles that could be affected by lighting of both the cycling circuit and 
parking areas. Accordingly, the lighting has been designed to the specific environmental and 
physical features of the site and use.  
 
The lighting scheme includes two separate elements - the lighting of the car park and street 
lighting that allows a reduced area of the circuit to be used during the evening. 
o No street lighting for the western area of the circuit to minimise environmental impacts in the 
area closest to the pond and to maintain dark corridor 
o Specification of extra warm white lighting colours (warm white 2200k LEDs) to minimise impacts 
on bats and reptiles 
o Full cut off internal louvres fitted to all track lighting for full light cut off behind luminaire.  
o Minimising and avoiding where possible lighting on key habitats and features. The light spill 
outside of the circuit surfaced area would be below 1 LUX and achieves acceptable ecological 
standards. 
o Circuit lighting levels within the range of 15 and 22 LUX following British Cycling design 
guidance 
o Specification of extra warm white lighting colours (warm white 2200k LEDs) to minimise impacts 
on bats and reptiles 
o Full cut off internal louvres fitted to all track lighting for full light cut off behind luminaire. The car 
parking area uses semi cut off internal louvres. 
o Minimising and avoiding where possible lighting on key habitats and features. The light spill 
outside of the circuit area would be below 1 LUX and achieves acceptable ecological standards. 
 
The use of LED lights is specified because they are more directional with light produced in a 
narrow beam and warm white 2200k LEDs are specified to help limit any ecological impact. 
 
The car park optic has an average of 10 LUX which is appropriate for the type of usage in this 
setting. Lighting spill grid calculations have been produced at various heights including 0m, 2.5m 
and 5m. The 5m results show no direct light outside of the circuit area as all the light leaving the 
fittings goes downwards. At 2.5m and 0m the light spill outside of the track and within the green 
areas located inside the track is kept below 1 LUX. 
 
The interior elements of the site provide extensive opportunities for habitat creation, and the 
proposals include areas of wildflower meadow, low scrub, and small groupings of trees. The 
landform will include slopes and undulations, together with areas of stone, boulders and log piles. 
The SuDS drainage will provide a network of routes to help direct amphibians towards tunnels 
which pass under the cycle track, to aid their safe migration. The SuDs basins will be sown with a 
diverse species wildflower meadow mix which is tolerant of periodic flooding. 
 
Subject to the implementation of the matters identified above - which can be controlled by 
condition - it is considered that the proposed development will not harm any protected species or 
the wider environment and the scheme is therefore considered to meet the requirements of LDP 
Policy NE1 in relation to nature conservation. 
 
6.6 Impact on Amenity 
 
The business plan for the velo park estimates between 10,000 and 20,000 visitors per annum. The 
final level of use will be known once the programme is fully developed, following a number of test 
events to establish the capacity of the circuit for racing, and the ability of the venue to manage a 
range and different sized activities. The users/visitors will be split between public, the education 
sector, local clubs, Welsh Cycling and private bookings. However, the facility will have a limited 
capacity, with the numbers of users on site at any one time managed with an agreed programme 
and carefully controlled in accordance with: 
o British Cycling safety audit of the circuit limiting the number of competitors allowed to take part in 
a competitive road race. 
o Pre-race entry limits controlling the number of competitors taking part in road or cyclo-cross 
racing event programme 
o A pre-booking system managing user numbers using the facility for formal training, coaching 
activity and drop-in session for members of the public. 

Page 27



o Education and schools programmes managed by the Council and Welsh Cycling. 
 
It is proposed that the velo park will be operational each day from 8:00-21:30. Busier times at the 
velo park are likely to be Monday to Friday 17:00 to 21:00, weekends 09:00 to 17:00 and bank 
holidays apart from Christmas Day. Peak times will also change seasonally with use expected to 
drop during the spring and summer months as the weather improves resulting in more people 
opting to cycle on the road and local trails. These users are expected to use the circuit more 
frequently in the autumn and winter months due to the safety and lighting of the facility. The 
opening hours proposed will be subject to review and will reflect demand although they will not 
normally extend beyond 21.30. 
 
The use of the facility will not require or use a tannoy speaker or announcement system that might 
affect residents. Traffic movement within the site will be restricted to the northern car parking area 
located furthest away from the residential area and closest to the main roads and Waste Recycling 
Centre. In contrast to traditional team sports, cycling generates very little sound or necessitates 
shouting or other loud noises whilst cycling. The main coaching areas will be located to the east of 
the circuit furthest away from residential areas. Research undertaken by the applicant relating to 
similar CRC's located across the UK has identified no known cycling related noise issues or 
upheld complaints. However, to limit the risk of noise impacting neighbours the use of the velo 
park will not take place during unsociable hours - after 21.30 and will not include the western area 
of the track nearer to residential areas after dark. 
 
Lighting will be fitted with full cut off louvres directing light onto the track only, which will prevent 
light spill outside the site. Lighting has been omitted from the western field adjacent to the 
properties on the neighbouring housing estate. The lighting will be user controlled so they are only 
in use (or dimmable) when required. Cycling under street lights will not take place after 21.30. 
Screen planting is proposed along the boundary with the Foxhunter Care Home which will filter 
views of the site as well as the recycling centre whilst retaining views from this property to the 
south-east.  
 
The potential noise level from such events is not considered to be significant enough to seriously 
harm local residential amenity and the development therefore complies with LDP policies EP1 and 
EP3. 
 
6.7 Highways 
 
The highway authority considers that the proposed development will not lead to a real deterioration 
in highway safety or capacity on the immediate local network and offers no objection to the 
development. As such it is considered that the development complies with LDP Policy MV1. 
 
6.7.1 Access / Highway Safety 
 
A Transport Assessment (TS) has been submitted in the support of the planning application and in 
addition to this an Active Travel Audit (ATA) and Event Management Plan (EMP) have been 
produced.  
 
The TS has demonstrated the following:  
o A review of the local highway network and collision data in the vicinity of the site indicates that 
there are no apparent problems in relation to the current operation or safety of the local highways;  
o The proposed site access arrangements comply with MCC guidance so that safe and suitable 
access can be achieved;  
o Proposed parking provision on-site will accommodate the proposed demand and will therefore 
ensure that there is no adverse impact upon the local highway network; and 
o Forecast trip attraction indicates an immaterial increase in traffic movements during the 
proposed development's peak hours of operation, with no anticipated severe impact on the local 
highway network (in particular, the Iberis Road / LHWRC Access Road Roundabout Junction).  
 
The EMP is a key document for the safe management of traffic and parking on the small number 
of occasions across the year that a major cycling event is held. It provides information in relation to 

Page 28



the operational periods, parking arrangements, event management procedures, which will all serve 
to minimise the highways and transportation impacts associated with the regional / national events 
hosted by the velo park on an infrequent basis.  
 
The TS concludes that the development will not result in a severe impact upon the safety or 
operation of the surrounding local highway network. This view is shared by the Highway Authority 
and as such there are no significant highway or transportation matters that would justify the refusal 
of this planning application on that basis. 
 
6.7.2 Parking 
 
The proposal includes 80 parking spaces which is in accordance with the assessment of similar 
CRC's and accommodate the entire demand associated with training and coaching activity as well 
as most larger scale events. A field owned by Monmouthshire CC to the east of the site and 
adjacent to the Llanfoist Household Waste Recycling Centre shall serve as the primary ad-hoc 
overflow parking area if required during the drier summer months and can accommodate a total of  
320 spaces. The overflow parking spaces will accommodate demand associated with national 
scale events and prevent overspill parking on the adjacent highway network. Furthermore, should 
further off-site parking provision be required or if the field is unavailable, other options exist 
including the nearby Llanfoist Fawr Primary School car park (52 spaces). All off site and overflow 
parking options, including the use of the school's parking, shall be agreed prior to any large-scale 
events being sanctioned and managed in accordance with the velo park's Event Management 
Plan. This arrangement is considered acceptable and in accordance with LDP Policy MV1. 
 
6.8 Flooding 
 
The site is partially within a Zone 2 flood plain where only less vulnerable development (which this 
scheme is classed as) is permitted. The planning application proposes less vulnerable 
development (a velo park). NRW's records also show that this site has previously flooded from the 
River Usk during the December 1979 flood event. Section 6 of TAN15 requires the Local Planning 
Authority to determine whether the development at this location is justified. Therefore, the tests set 
out in Section 6.2 of TAN15 are relevant. It is considered that the tests set out in criteria (i) to (iii) 
have been met. The final test (iv) is for the applicant to demonstrate, through the submission of an 
FCA, that the potential consequences of flooding can be managed to an acceptable level.  
 
The FCA states that the site rises from east to west with site ground levels ranging between 45-
54m AOD and a minimum ground level of 45.50m AOD. Based on these site levels, the FCA 
shows: 
During a 1% (1 in 100 year) plus 25% for climate change annual probability fluvial flood event, the 
predicted flood level is 46.61m AOD. The majority of the site ground levels are well above 47.00m 
AOD, therefore the majority of the site will not be inundated with floodwater during this event. It is 
noted that a small proportion of the site may be inundated with floodwater on the eastern boundary 
of the site. Furthermore, the area of the site to the north where the car park is proposed to be 
located has been shown to be located outside the 1% (1 in 100 year) plus 25% for climate change 
annual probability fluvial flood event outline.  During a 0.1% (1 in 1000 year) annual probability 
fluvial flood event is interpolated as 48.60m AOD the majority of the site ground levels are well 
above 47.00m AOD, and therefore the majority of the site will not be inundated with floodwater 
during this event. The area of the site to the north where the proposed car park will be located 
have been shown to be located outside the 0.1% (1 in 1000 year) annual probability fluvial flood 
event outline. Furthermore, this area has a minimum ground level of 48.87m AOD which provides 
a freeboard of 0.27m above the predicted flood level for this flooding event.  
 
The FCA proposes the management of any residual flood risk by recommending the 
owners/occupants signing up to the Flood Warning System and the preparation of an emergency 
flood plan. Cut and fill will be required as part of the construction details of the development, the 
FCA demonstrates that this will not alter the conveyance of any potential flooding and will increase 
flood storage post development. 
 

Page 29



The majority of the velo park, would be expected to remain dry in all but the most extreme weather 
conditions. The proposed development would be operated with minimal risk from flooding, would 
not increase flood risk elsewhere and is therefore considered to be compliant with the 
requirements of TAN15. 
 
6.9 Drainage 
 
6.9.1 Foul Drainage 
 
Under the Habitats Regulations, where a plan or project is likely to have a significant effect on a 
European site, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects, and where it is not 
directly connected with or necessary to the management of the site previously (designated 
pursuant to EU retained law) the competent authority must carry out an appropriate assessment of 
the implication of the plan or project in view of the site's conservation objectives. Natural 
Resources Wales has set new phosphate standards for the river SACs in Wales. Any proposed 
development within the SAC catchments that might increase the amount of phosphate within the 
catchment could lead to additional damaging effects to the SAC features and therefore such 
proposals must be screened through a HRA to determine whether they are likely to have a 
significant effect on the SAC condition. 
 
This application has been screened in accordance with Natural Resources Wales' interim advice 
for planning applications within the river Special Areas of Conservation (SACs) catchments (issued 
on 2nd May 2021). It is considered that this development is unlikely to increase phosphate inputs 
as it falls within the following criterion in the interim advice: 
Any development that does not increase the volume of foul wastewater. 
 
No cafe or toilet facilities are proposed as part of the development at this time. In the future, the 
existing One Planet Centre has potential to be used or a suitable modular eco-building could be 
added at a later date for this purpose once phosphate stripping technology is added to the local 
WWTW. At the current time however, a small number of portaloos will be provided in the parking 
area for daily use. Large scale events will provide additional portaloo facilities in accordance with 
event management plans. It is proposed to remove the waste off site to be treated at a WWTW in 
a non-phosphorous sensitive area in accordance with the foul drainage statement that has been 
submitted in support of the application. Compliance with a detailed strategy can be conditioned 
should Members be minded to recommend approval. On this basis no additional waste water will 
be entering the Phosphorous Sensitive Catchment Area as a result of this development and 
phosphate impacts can be screened out. 
 
6.9.2 Surface Water Drainage 
 
Surface water and drainage will continue to flow in the same direction as is existing (towards the 
existing pond from the majority of the site and in the south-eastern corner drainage will continue 
towards the lower fields and wetland area. There will be no significant additional surface water 
draining to the area near to Racecourse Farm and attenuation will manage the flow. This is 
considered acceptable in planning terms. Separate SuDs approval would also be required for the 
proposal.  
 
6.10 Contaminated Land 
 
Phase I and II Geo-environmental and Site Investigations (January 2020) have been undertaken to 
establish the development potential of key areas of the site including the area of landfill. The report 
recommended that no development is progressed on the landfill due to the thickness of the clay 
capping layer resulting in the presence of waste materials at shallow depth including metal and 
glass. This is reflected in the submitted drawings. 
 
The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) is a statutory consultee for certain developments within 
the Consultation Distance of Major Hazard Sites/ pipelines. Because of the presence of a high-
pressure gas main, a formal consultation in January 2020 under the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012, established that the HSE did not 

Page 30



advise, on safety grounds, against the development although restriction on occupied buildings or 
major traffic routes within a certain proximity of the pipeline would apply. 
 
6.11 Response to the Representations of Third Parties and/or Community/Town Council 
 
6.11.1 The following main issues have been identified as concerns by local residents and the 
Community Council: 
 
1. Lighting 
The proposed lighting design provides significant details concerning lighting spill and it should be 
emphasised that the cycling circuit does not require floodlighting, with only the equivalent of street 
lighting necessary to enable the use of the facility for coaching and training into the evening during 
the winter months. To minimise impacts on neighbours the lights will be fitted with full cut off 
louvres directing lighting onto the narrow area of the track with no significant light spill or glow as is 
often experienced with sports pitch floodlighting. Lighting has been omitted from the western field 
closest to the houses at Ffordd Sain Ffwyst.  
 
2. Traffic 
The highway authority considers that the proposed development will not lead to a real deterioration 
in highway safety or capacity on the immediate local network and offers no objection to the 
development.  
 
Major events will be managed in accordance with an Events Management Plan (EMP) which 
includes provision for traffic management. The Car Parking EMP provides information in relation to 
the operational periods, parking arrangements, nearby complimentary services and facilities, and 
typical event management procedures, which will all serve to minimise the highways and 
transportation impacts associated with the regional or national events hosted by the proposed velo 
park on an infrequent basis. Furthermore, a Site User Management Plan will enable the control of 
the type of activity agreed and the number of site visitors to the site at any one time. A number of 
test events will take place to establish the capacity of the site and infrastructure to accommodate 
large scale events.  
 
Whilst walking and cycling is possible via the existing network of footpaths that form part of the 
County Council’s integrated network map, discussions to facilitate the conversion of some of these 
paths to permissive cycle path will be investigated as part of wider active travel improvements in 
the area.  
 
Highway issues are reviewed in detail in Paragraph 6.7 above. 
 
3. Wildlife 
 
A series of ecological surveys have been undertaken since June 2019 that identified Great 
Crested Newts (GCN) and bats have been recorded and evidence of otter moving through the site. 
The GCN mitigation strategy and GI plan have been developed to ensure maximum protection and 
habitat connectivity/creation is afforded to these species. An impact assessment has also been 
undertaken. The Council’s statutory consultee on ecological matters, NRW are content with these 
measures and have offered no objection to the application (subject to suggested conditions). As 
such it is considered that the proposed development will not harm wildlife interests and will provide 
net gain for biodiversity in accordance with PPW11. Biodiversity is discussed in more detail in 
Paragraph 6.5 above. 
 
4. Noise and Disturbance to Local Residents 
 
This aspect has been discussed in Paragraph 6.6. Lighting will be fitted with full cut off louvres 
directing light onto the track only which will prevent light spill outside the site. Lighting has been 
omitted from the western field adjacent to the properties on the neighbouring housing estate. 
 

Page 31



Noise will be limited due to the nature of the proposed use. There will be no requirement for a 
tannoy or announcement system and shouting normally associated with some team sports is 
generally not required in cycling. 
  
Screen planting is proposed along the boundary with the Foxhunter Care Home which will filter 
views of the site as well as the recycling centre whilst retaining views from this property to the 
south-east. 
 
5. Other 
 
The Council wishes to make future provision for a replacement allotment in the Abergavenny area 
on a site with a larger car parking provision and easy access to the road. However, this is not part 
of this application. 
 
6.12 Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
6.12.1 The duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales 
has been considered, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, under section 3 of 
the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (the WBFG Act). In reaching this 
recommendation, the ways of working set out at section 5 of the WBFG Act have been taken into 
account and it is considered that this recommendation is in accordance with the sustainable 
development principle through its contribution towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers' well-
being objectives set out in section 8 of the WBFG Act. 
 
6.12.2 The Act aims to make "long-lasting, positive changes to both current and future 
generations". Long-term benefits associated with an increased uptake of active modes may 
include creating a healthier population and reducing the impact transport has upon the 
environment by encouraging travel by bicycle instead of more polluting modes. This proposal will 
help achieve that objective. 
 
7.0 RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE 
 
Conditions: 
 
1 This development shall be begun within 5 years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the list of approved plans set out 
in the table below. 
 
REASON: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved drawings, for 
the avoidance of doubt. 
 
3 No development shall commence until detailed design and safety audits have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority for the construction of the means of 
access from the Council’s maintained access road. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the access is constructed in the interests of highway safety and to 
ensure compliance with LDP Policy MV1. 
 
 
 4 A proportionate Green Infrastructure Management Plan shall be submitted to, and be 
approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the commencement of the 
development. The content of the Management Plan shall include the following: 
 
a) Description and evaluation of Green Infrastructure assets to be identified, protected and 
managed in the GI management plan including those that are to be part of strategic landscaping. 

Page 32



a.Trees, Hedgerows, grassland  
b.Green corridors 
c. Pond environs, interface and blue corridors  
b) Opportunities for enhancement to be incorporated  
a.Management of Grassland for botanical species diversity and / or protected species including 
reptiles  
b.Management of tree and hedge buffer strips to increase and maintain diversity, connectivity and 
screening  
c.Maintain habitat connectivity through and or around the perimeter of the site for species 
c) Trends and constraints on site that might influence management of above features. 
d) Aims and objectives of management. 
e) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives. 
f) Prescriptions for management actions. 
g) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being rolled forward 
over a twenty-year period). 
h) Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the plan. 
i) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures. 
 
The Management Plan shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which 
the long term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the management 
body(ies) responsible for its delivery as appropriate. The plan shall also set out (where the results 
from monitoring show that conservation aims and objectives of the Green Infrastructure 
Management Plan are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, 
agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully functioning Green 
Infrastructure objectives of the originally approved scheme. The approved plan shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To maintain and enhance Green Infrastructure Assets in accordance with LDP policies, 
DES1, S13, GI1, NE1, EP1 and SD4. (Legislative background - Well Being of Future Generations 
Act 2015, Planning (Wales) Act 2015 Environment (Wales) Act 2016) 
 
5 A schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of five years shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to works commencing on site and 
shall include details of the arrangements for its implementation  
 
REASON: To ensure the provision of amenity afforded by the proper maintenance of existing and / 
or new landscape features in accordance with LDP Policies LC5, DES 1, S13, and GI1 and NE1. 
 
6 All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details and to a reasonable standard in accordance with the relevant recommendations of 
appropriate British Standards or other recognised Codes of Good Practice. The works shall be 
carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with the 
timetable agreed with the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants that, within a period of five 
years after planting, are removed, die or become, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, 
seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others 
of species, size and number as originally approved. 
 
REASON: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of a reasonable standard of 
landscape in accordance with the approved designs and ensure the provision afforded by 
appropriate Landscape Design and Green Infrastructure in accordance with LDP Policies LC5, 
DES 1, S13, and GI1 and NE1. 
 
 
7 No development shall commence until a Landscape & Environmental Management Plan 
(LEMP) for the provision, management and maintenance of the landscape and ecological features 
at the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
LEMP shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 

Page 33



REASON: To ensure necessary landscape and environmental management measures are agreed 
prior to commencement and implemented to ensure the site's landscape and environmental 
features are adequately managed long term in accordance with LDP Policy NE1. 
 
7 No development shall commence until a Great Crested Newt Conservation Plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Great Crested Newt 
Conservation Plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To ensure the protection of Great Crested Newt affected by the development in 
accordance with LDP Policy NE1. 
 
8 No development, including site clearance, shall commence until a Biosecurity Risk 
Assessment that considers invasive non-native species (INNS) and specific diseases (e.g. Chytrid) 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The risk 
assessment shall include measures to prevent the introduction of invasive species,  
and, where present, measures for the control, removal or long-term management of INNS, both 
during construction and operation. The risk assessment shall consider landscaping and other 
related plans. The Biosecurity Risk Assessment shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  
 
REASON: To secure measures to prevent or control the spread and effective management of any 
invasive non-native species and listed diseases at the site in accordance with LDP Policy NE1. 
 
9 Following substantial completion of the development, an Ecological Compliance Audit 
(ECA) scheme shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
Audit shall identify Key Performance Indicators (KPI's) that are to  
be used for the purposes of assessing and evidencing compliant implementation of proposals.  
 
REASON: To evidence compliant implementation of all ecological avoidance mitigation and 
compensation works in accordance with LDP Policy NE1. 
 
10 If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the 
site then no further development shall be carried out until a remediation strategy detailing how this 
unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The remediation strategy shall be carried out as approved.  
 
REASON: To ensure the risks associated with previously unsuspected contamination at the site 
are dealt with through a remediation strategy, to minimise the risk to both future users of the land 
and neighbouring land, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks. 
 
12 Foul waste from portaloos used in association with the development hereby approved shall 
be managed in strict accordance with a Foul Drainage Strategy to be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before works commence on site.  
 
REASON: To ensure there is no increase in phosphorous entering River SACs within a 
Phosphorous Sensitive Area. 
 
INFORMATIVES 
 
 1 Due to the minor nature of the proposed development (including any demolition) and the 
location of the proposed development, it is considered that the proposals did not need to be 
screened under the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations. 
 
2 The proposed scheme will require a sustainable drainage system designed in accordance 
with the attached Welsh Government Standards for sustainable drainage. The scheme will require 
approval by the SuDS Approving Body (SAB) prior to any construction work commencing. Details 
and application forms can be found at: https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/sab 
 

Page 34



3 The Great Crested Newt Conservation Plan should include: 
1. An assessment of impacts during the construction and operational phases of the scheme. This 
to include an evaluation of the nature, extent and duration of the likely direct and indirect impacts 
of the development. This assessment should include: 
Tabulated review of the extent, distribution and quality of GCN habitat to be removed, retained, 
enhanced and created, supported by drawings as appropriate; 
risks of incidental injury or killing; and 
consideration of habitat functionality and connectivity during and post construction. 
2. Ecological design considerations. This should include habitat enhancement for GCN within and 
outside of the development footprint on land within the Applicant's ownership (e.g., the creation of 
ponds away from the cycle track and artificial lighting,  
as well as in areas within the red line boundary that are protected from flooding) and should 
demonstrate how connectivity between habitats is to be maintained post construction.  
3. Submission of details and associated plans concerning principles of GCN avoidance and 
mitigation measures during construction including, but not limited to amphibian fence 
specifications and proposed locations; fence monitoring and maintenance requirements; and 
proposed timescales.  
4. Submission of further details concerning on-site and off-site GCN habitat compensatory 
proposals including plans, extent, access, as well as current and proposed tenure. Details shall 
identify areas of terrestrial and aquatic habitat to be  
retained, enhanced and created. In respect of aquatic habitats, pond and associated infrastructure 
design and fish management requirements should be submitted and flood risk assessments to be 
carried out for each proposed and existing water body. 
5. Submission of the principles of a long-term site management plan that includes:  
defined aims and objectives;  
habitat management prescriptions;  
surveillance;  
contingency measures if fish or invasive non-native species (INNS) are detected;  
licensing requirements; current and any proposed changes to tenure of the dedicated ecology 
areas;  
persons or bodies responsible for undertaking management and  
surveillance together with required skills and competencies; reporting requirements and proposed 
dates for updating/revising the management plan.  
6. Proposed mechanism for ensure the long-term management and operation of the proposal. In 
this instance, we surmise that this will be delivered by a planning obligation such as a Section 106 
to ensure the long-term conservation measures  
located outside the red line boundary of the proposal. We suggest the mitigation strategy includes 
a 'Heads of Terms' document that specifies funding mechanisms, tenure, delivery of management 
and provisions for updating the management plan.  
7. Submission of measures designed to ensure the installation and maintenance of an amphibian-
friendly surface water management system that does not include gully pots (or other similar 
features that could trap newts). 
8. Submission to include proposed timescales and reporting requirements and long-term financial 
considerations.  
9. Submission of a long-term GCN monitoring plan. The methodology shall accord with, and the 
results reported through, the Wales Great Crested Newt Monitoring Scheme. 
 
4 The GI Management Plan should include: 
1. Details of habitats, landscape, environmental and ecological features present or to be created at 
the site together with aims and objectives. 
2. Details of the desired conditions of features (present and to be created) at the site. 
3. Details of scheduling and timings of activities. 
4. Details of short and long-term management, monitoring and maintenance of new and existing 
landscape, environmental and ecological features at the site to deliver, restore and maintain the 
target condition/conservation status. 
5. Details of monitoring of landscape and ecological features. In respect of great crested newt, the 
surveillance methodology shall accord with and the results reported through the Wales Great 
Crested Newts Monitoring Scheme.  
6. Wardening and site liaison.  

Page 35



7. Details of replacement measures should any landscape or environmental features die, be 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within 25 years of completion of development.  
8. Contingency measures if fish or invasive non-native species (INNS) are detected, and proposals 
that are capable of being implemented in the event of failure to undertake or to appropriately 
implement identified or contingency actions.  
9. Details of management and maintenance responsibilities.  
10. Details of timescales; length of plan; and the method and proposed dates to review and update 
plans (informed by monitoring) at specific intervals as agreed. 
11. Licensing requirements for undertaking habitat management and surveillance.  
12. Persons or bodies responsible for undertaking management and surveillance together with 
required skills and competencies; and 
13. Reporting requirements.  
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 36



 

 
Application 
Number: 

DM/2023/01329 
 

 
Proposal: 

 
Change of Use of Glebe Bungalow to C3 dwellinghouse from Annex and Holiday 
Let granted permission under DC/2007/00778  and DC/2017/01200 

 
Address: 

 
Glebe Bungalow, Llantilio School Road, Llantilio Pertholey, Abergavenny, NP7 
6NU 
 

Applicant: Mr Liam Kirwan 
 

Plans: 
 

Location Plan  - , Site Plan   

 
RECOMMENDATION: Refuse 
 
Case Officer: Ms Kate Bingham 
Date Valid: 26.09.2023 
 
1.0 APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
This application was presented to Planning Committee on 10th January 2024 with a 
recommendation for refusal. Members did not agree with this recommendation and accordingly the 
application is represented for approval subject to the following conditions and informatives: 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
1 This development shall be begun within 5 years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the list of approved plans set out 
in the table below. 
 
REASON: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved drawings, for 
the avoidance of doubt. 
 
3 The installation of two bird boxes on the north elevation of the building as described in 
email from Owen Davies dated 21/2/24 and drawing dated 21/2/24 shall be implemented as 
approved within 3 months of the date of this permission and shall be retained in perpetuity. 
 
Reason: To provide net benefit for biodiversity on the site as required by the Environment (Wales) 
Act 2016, Planning Policy Wales and LDP Policy NE1. 
 
4 Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3, Schedule 2, Part 1 Classes A B C D and E  of 
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)(Amendment)(Wales) Order 
2013 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no 
enlargements, improvements or other alterations to the dwellinghouse or any outbuildings shall be 
erected or constructed. 
 
REASON: If substantial extensions or alterations were necessary this development would not 
normally be favourably considered and would be contrary to LDP Policy H4. 
 
 
 5 Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3, Schedule 2, Part 2 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development)(Amendment)(Wales) Order 1995 (or any Order 
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no fence, wall or other means of 

Page 37

Agenda Item 4b



enclosure other than any approved under this permission shall be erected or placed without the 
prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to safeguard the appearance of the area and to 
ensure compliance with LDP Policy H4. 
 
INFORMATIVES: 
 
1 Due to the minor nature of the proposed development (including any demolition) and the 
location of the proposed development, it is considered that the proposals did not need to be 
screened under the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations. 
 
2 Any external works on this land will need to be undertaken following engagement with 
Asset Protection to determine the interface with Network Rail assets, buried or otherwise and by 
entering into a Basis Asset Protection Agreement, if required, with a minimum of 3months notice 
before works start. Initially the outside party should contact 
assetprotectionwales@networkrail.co.uk. 
 
The previous report to the meeting of Committee held in January 2024 is below. 

 
Application 
Number: 

DM/2023/01329 
 

 
Proposal: 

 
Change of Use of Glebe Bungalow to C3 dwellinghouse from Annex and Holiday 
Let granted permission under DC/2007/00778  and DC/2017/01200 

 
Address: 

 
Glebe Bungalow, Llantilio School Road, Llantilio Pertholey, Abergavenny, NP7 
6NU 
 

Applicant: Mr Liam Kirwan 
 

Plans: 
 

Location Plan  - , Site Plan   

 
RECOMMENDATION: Refuse 
 
Case Officer: Ms Kate Bingham 
Date Valid: 26.09.2023 
 
This application is presented to Planning Committee at the request of the Local Member 
 
1.0 APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
1.1 Site Description 
 
This application relates to an existing building (Glebe Bungalow) which originally granted 
permission (DC/2007/00778) as an annex to Glebe Cottage in 2009 and subsequently permission 
was granted in 2017 to vary the condition allowing it to be occupied as an annex but also let out to 
visitors as a holiday let (DC/2017/01200). The building itself replaced a static caravan that was on 
site and occupied as an annex to the same property that was granted a Certificate of Lawful Use in 
2007. In 2020, the applicant sold the main house, thereby severing the tie between the house and 
the annex. 
 
The site is located on the edge of the settlement of Llantilio Pertholey to the north of Abergavenny. 
The village is not classified as a major or minor village under Local Development Plan (LDP) 
Policy S1 and the location is therefore considered to be open countryside.  For clarity the site sits 
outside of the development boundary for Abergavenny which is to the west on the opposite side of 
Hereford Road. 
 

Page 38



The site is within the Phosphorous Sensitive Catchment Area of the River Usk Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC). 
 
1.2 Proposal Description 
 
Planning permission is sought to retain the use of the building as a dwellinghouse (C3) to allow the 
applicant to continue to occupy it following its separation from the main house. 
 
2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY (if any) 
 
Reference 
Number 

Description Decision Decision Date 

  
DM/2023/00237 Two storey side extension and porch 

to replace lean-to extension – Glebe 
Cottage (not annex) 

Approved 29.06.2023 

  

DM/2023/00631 Renovations, alterations and 
conversion of former cowshed/dairy 
to a holiday let unit – Glebe Cottage 
(not annex) 

Approved 05.10.2023 

  

DM/2023/00946 Discharge of condition 3 (Samples 
and external finishes) for planning 
decision DM/2023/00237. 

Approved 17.07.2023 

  

  

DC/2017/01200 Variation of condition 1 (to change the 
restriction from annex only to holiday 
let and annex). Relating to application 
DC/2007/00778. 

Approved 25.01.2018 

  

DC/2007/01218 Static caravan used for twenty years 
for residential purposes - Certificate 
of Lawfulness. 

Approved 17.10.2007 

  

DC/2007/00778 Proposed New Granny Annex to 
replace Lawful Static Caravan used 
for Residential Purposes within 
Curtilage. 

Approved 01.04.2009 

      

DM/2023/01329 Change of Use of Glebe Bungalow to 
C3 dwellinghouse from Annex and 
Holiday Let granted permission 
DC/2007/00778  and DC/2017/01200 

Pending 
Determination 

 

   

 
3.0 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Strategic Policies 
 
S1 LDP The Spatial Distribution of New Housing Provision 
S12 LDP Efficient Resource Use and Flood Risk 
S13 LDP Landscape, Green Infrastructure and the Natural Environment 
S17 LDP Place Making and Design 
 

Page 39



Development Management Policies 
 
H4 LDP Conversion/Rehabilitation of Buildings in the Open Countryside for Residential Use 
DES1 LDP General Design Considerations 
SD3 LDP Flood Risk 
EP1 LDP Amenity and Environmental Protection 
EP5 LDP Foul Sewage Disposal 
 
4.0 NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY 
 
Future Wales - the national plan 2040 
 
Future Wales is the national development framework, setting the direction for development in 
Wales to 2040. It is a development plan with a strategy for addressing key national priorities 
through the planning system, including sustaining and developing a vibrant economy, achieving 
decarbonisation and climate-resilience, developing strong ecosystems and improving the health 
and well-being of our communities. Future Wales - the national plan 2040 is the national 
development framework and it is the highest tier plan , setting the direction for development in 
Wales to 2040. It is a framework which will be built on by Strategic Development Plans at a 
regional level and Local Development Plans. Planning decisions at every level of the planning 
system in Wales must be taken in accordance with the development plan as a whole. 
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 11 
 
The primary objective of PPW is to ensure that the planning system contributes towards the 
delivery of sustainable development and improves the social, economic, environmental and 
cultural well-being of Wales, as required by the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, the Well-being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and other key legislation and resultant 
duties such as the Socio-economic Duty. 
 
A well-functioning planning system is fundamental for sustainable development and achieving 
sustainable places.  PPW promotes action at all levels of the planning process which is conducive 
to maximising its contribution to the well-being of Wales and its communities. 
 
5.0 REPRESENTATIONS 
 
5.1 Consultation Replies 
 
Llantilio Pertholey Community Council - No comments received to date. 
 
Natural Resources Wales (NRW) - No objections.  
 
Foul Drainage: We note that the annex/holiday let which is the subject of this planning application 
(Glebe Bungalow) was originally within the residential curtilage of the main house (Glebe Cottage) 
and has been used a dwellinghouse since 2013. Recognising the specific nature of the application 
submitted, we are satisfied that it is unlikely to increase the amount of phosphorus entering the 
catchment. Therefore, we are satisfied that the proposal is not likely to have a significant effect on 
the River Usk SAC. 
 
Flooding: Our Flood Risk Map confirms the application site lies partially within Zone C2 of the 
Development Advice Maps (DAM) as contained in Technical Advice Note (TAN) 15: Development 
and Flood Risk (2004). The Flood Map for Planning identifies the application site to be at risk of 
flooding and falls into Flood Zone 2 and 3 (Rivers). As this application is for a change of use from 
an annex/holiday let to a dwelling, we note that a highly vulnerable use already exists. Given the 
nature of the proposed development, and in the absence of a flood consequences assessment, we 
consider the proposals could be acceptable, subject to the developer being made aware of the 
potential flood risks and advised to install flood-proofing measures as part of the development. 
 

Page 40



Network Rail - Network Rail have no objections in principle to the above application. Any external 
works on this land will need to be undertaken following engagement with Asset Protection to 
determine the interface with Network Rail assets, buried or otherwise and by entering into a Basis 
Asset Protection Agreement, if required, with a minimum of 3 months’ notice before works start. 
Initially the outside party should contact assetprotectionwales@networkrail.co.uk. 
 
MCC Environmental Health - Please note that, with the pre-existing use of the property as an 
annex to a dwelling and the property's likely historic use as a dwelling, the Public Protection Team 
have no objections to the sought change in use. 
 
MCC Biodiversity - The Biodiversity team has no comment on the above application. We think it 
is appropriate to secure net benefit in accordance with PPW on all planning applications, including 
change of use. An appropriate condition is suggested should the application be approved. 
 
SEWBReC Search Results - No significant ecological record identified. 
  
5.2 Neighbour Notification 
 
Three representations in support of the application for the following reasons: 
 

 I know the occupier has lived in the bungalow for 10 years or more, so I don't see any 
issues or concerns and are in favour for Glebe Bungalow becoming residential. 

 Only right that this dwelling should now be classified as a permanent home and not as a 
holiday let.  

 Very happy for the bungalow to be formally made into a dwellinghouse as opposed to a 
holiday let. 

 Prefer the consistency of residents rather than have frequently changing visitors in such an 
important building in our small community. 

 
5.3 Other Representations 
 
None. 
 
5.4 Local Member Representations 
 
County Councillor Revd Malcom Lane - I have been contacted by the agent for applicant Mr Liam 
Kirwan in relation to his application to convert a holiday let to a dwelling house at Glebe Bungalow 
DM/2023/01329. There are unusual background circumstances and matters in relation to the 
interpretation of Local Policy H4 Conversion of buildings in the open countryside for residential 
use, including modern constructed buildings, that should be discussed by the Planning Committee 
before a decision is made. I have visited the site which is behind St Teilo’s Church. 
 
6.0 EVALUATION 
 
6.1 Principle of Development 
 
6.1.1 By way of background to the application, works were completed on the building the subject 
of this application by 2013.  As stated in paragraph 1.1 the building replaced a static caravan that 
was on site and occupied as an annex to the same property that was granted a Certificate of 
Lawful Use in 2007. For personal reasons, the applicant had to sell Glebe Cottage (the primary 
dwelling) - thus separating ownership of Glebe Cottage and Glebe Bungalow (the name of the 
annex building the subject of this application). As such, it is no longer possible for the applicant to 
comply with the condition attached to permission DC/2017/01200 limiting the property to being 
used as an annex.  
 
6.1.2 The condition also allows the use of the building as holiday accommodation although this 
would not be of benefit to the applicant who wishes to live in the property himself. However, it 
remains a viable option for the building given that it can no longer be used as an annex and a 
holiday let would indirectly benefit the economy of the wider area. 

Page 41



 
6.1.3 Notwithstanding the understanding that there were personal reasons for the separation of 
ownership of the site, the application must be determined on its planning merits only. In terms of 
planning policy, the change of use of the building from an annex to a self-contained dwelling falls 
to be considered under LDP Policy H4 - Conversion of Redundant Buildings in the Open 
Countryside.  
 
6.1.4 It is important to highlight the supporting text around Policy H4 within the adopted LDP which 
states in para. 6.1.13 that, “The conversion/ rehabilitation of buildings in the open countryside for 
residential use is an exception to national policies which generally seek to strictly control 
residential development in the open countryside.” 
 
6.1.15 This is reinforced within Policy H4 and it states that the “criteria will be applied strictly; 
proposals that are deemed not to comply with them will be judged against national policies relating 
to the erection of new dwellings in the countryside or against Policy T2 relating to the re-use and 
adaptation of existing buildings to provide permanent serviced or self-catering visitor  
accommodation.” 
 
6.1.6 Of particular relevance to this application is criterion (e) of Policy H4 which sets out that: 
 
'Buildings of modern and /or utilitarian construction and materials such as concrete block work, 
portal framed buildings clad in metal sheeting or buildings of substandard quality and / or 
incongruous appearance will not be considered favourably for residential conversion.  Other 
buildings will be expected to have been used for their intended purpose for a significant period of 
time and particularly close scrutiny will be given to proposals relating to those less than 10 years 
old, especially where there has been no change in activity on the unit' 
 
6.1.7 The property is a modern purpose-built two bedroom-building, now set within its own garden. 
It is served by an access, off road parking, its own private foul drainage and no extensions or 
alterations are sought for its retention as use as a self-contained dwelling.  
 
6.1.8 However, while it is not disputed that the building has been constructed to a high quality in 
terms of its appearance and would not require any physical changes, it is undoubtedly of modern 
construction (being completed in 2013). As such, its design standard does not fundamentally 
outweigh the failure to comply with criterion (e) of Policy H4 and therefore is unacceptable in 
principle.  
 
6.1.9 The conversion of this modern annex/holiday let into a residential dwelling does not meet the 
criteria of Policy H4 of the LDP and there are no overriding reasons to allow the development of a 
new dwelling in the open countryside.  Policy LC1 outlines that “there is a presumption against 
new built development in the open countryside, unless justified under national planning policy 
and/or LDP policies”.  The application does not outline any rationale for the construction of this 
unjustified new build dwelling in the open countryside and therefore the proposal does conflict with 
the requirements of Policies S1 and LC1 of the LDP.  
 
6.1.10 Finally, in support of this application, the applicant has provided some examples of where 
existing holiday let properties have been granted consent for conversion to dwellinghouses. 
However, upon review, these examples relate to traditional buildings rather than a modern, 
purpose-built annex. Therefore little weight can be afforded to these as direct comparison is not 
possible and no precedent has been established.  In summary, there are no material planning 
reasons to justify the granting of planning permission for a building of modern construction to be 
used as a single dwellinghouse when it is in direct conflict with criterion (e) of LDP Policy H4. 
 
6.2 Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
6.2.1 The nearest neighbouring dwelling is Glebe Cottage but this is over 20m away from any 
habitable room windows of the building in question and therefore overlooking between the two is 
minimal. There are no other existing dwellings within close proximity of the site with St Teilo's 
Church being located to the north. 

Page 42



 
6.2.2 It is noted that the current occupier is in support of the application and representations have 
been made by other local residents that there is a preference for a permanent residential dwelling 
rather than a holiday let.  
 
6.3 Access / Highway Safety 
 
6.3.1 The property benefits from its own access, parking and turning area which spurs off from a 
shared entrance onto the highway with Glebe Cottage. No changes are proposed as part of this 
application. 
 
6.4 Biodiversity 
 
6.4.1 As there are no physical works proposed as part of this application there are no issues in 
relation to loss of habitat or harm to any protected species. However, it would be appropriate to 
secure net benefit for biodiversity in accordance with PPW. This could be secured via condition 
should Members be minded to approve the application, 
 
6.5 Flood Risk 
 
6.5.1 Natural Resources Wales (NRW) Flood Risk Map confirms the application site lies partially 
within Zone C2 of the Development Advice Maps (DAM) as contained in Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) 15: Development and Flood Risk (2004). The Flood Map for Planning identifies the 
application site to be at risk of flooding and falls into Flood Zone 2 and 3 (Rivers). The current 
lawful use as an annex/holiday let is already considered to be a highly vulnerable use in terms of 
flood risk and the proposed change of use would not increase this risk. As such NRW have no 
objections on flood risk grounds subject to the developer being made aware of the potential flood 
risks and advised to install flood-proofing measures as part of the development. 
 
6.6 Foul Drainage (Phosphates) 
 
6.6.1 Under the Habitats Regulations, where a plan or project is likely to have a significant effect 
on a European site, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects, and where it is not 
directly connected with or necessary to the management of the site previously (designated 
pursuant to EU retained law) the competent authority must carry out an appropriate assessment of 
the implication of the plan or project in view of the site's conservation objectives.  
 
6.6.2 Natural Resources Wales has set new phosphate standards for the river Special Areas of 
Conservation (SACs) in Wales (21st January 2021). Any proposed development within the SAC 
catchments that might increase the amount of phosphate within the catchment could lead to 
additional damaging effects to the SAC features and therefore such proposals must be screened 
through a HRA to determine whether they are likely to have a significant effect on the SAC 
condition. 
 
6.6.3 This application has been screened in accordance with Natural Resources Wales' advice for 
planning applications within the river Special Areas of Conservation (SACs) catchments (version 3 
issued 22nd July 2022). It is considered that ‘No Likely Significant Effects’ on the SAC are 
anticipated as a result of this development proposal as there is unlikely to be a source of additional 
phosphorus or pathway for impacts. The development is therefore screened out as not likely to 
have a significant effect on a river SAC in relation to phosphorus inputs as it falls within the 
following criterion in the NRW advice: Any development that does not increase the volume and 
phosphorus concentration of wastewater. The building already has consent to be used as an 
annex and a holiday let. The proposed change of use would not lead to any material increase in 
occupation. 
 
6.7 Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
6.7.1 The duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales 
has been considered, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, under section 3 of 

Page 43



the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (the WBFG Act). In reaching this 
recommendation, the ways of working set out at section 5 of the WBFG Act have been taken into 
account and it is considered that this recommendation is in accordance with the sustainable 
development principle through its contribution towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers' well-
being objectives set out in section 8 of the WBFG Act. 
 
6.8 Conclusion 
 
6.8.1 Having carefully reviewed the case made to retain the use of building as a self-contained 
dwelling, there are no material planning reasons or other reasons so exceptional to overcome the 
principle of a building of modern construction being suitable for conversion which fails to comply 
with criterion (e) of LDP Policy H4 and thus would be contrary to policies S1 and LC1.  
 
7.0 RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE 
 
Reasons for Refusal: 
 
The building is of modern construction, being completed in 2013. As such, it cannot be considered 
favourably for conversion as a separate dwelling as it fails to comply with criterion (e) of Policy H4 
of the Monmouthshire Adopted Local Development Plan in that it would represent an unjustified  
new dwelling in the open countryside which also conflicts with Policies S1 and LC1.  
 
 
  
 

 
 

 

 

Page 44



 
 

 
 
  

www.llyw.cymru/penderfyniadau-cynllunio-ac-amgylchedd-cymru 
www.gov.wales/planning-and-environment-decisions-wales 

 
 

Appeal Decision 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

by Helen Smith BA(Hons) BTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Welsh Ministers 

Decision date: 09/02/2024 

Appeal reference: CAS-03086-Z4Z3Z7 

Site address: The Cedars, Chapel Lane, Pwllmeyric, NP16 6LE 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against 
a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr and Mrs David and Catherine Carne against the decision of 
Monmouthshire County Council. 

• The application Ref DM/2023/01210, dated 29 August 2023, was refused by notice dated 
20 October 2023. 

• The development proposed is a double garage with craft room over (replacement of 
application DC/2018/00183 Rev A). 

• A site visit was made on 17 January 2024 and 31 January 2024. 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 
Procedural Matter 

2. At the time of my site visit, a detached outbuilding was under construction at the appeal 
site.  For the avoidance of doubt, my decision is made on the basis of the application 
plans considered by the Council. 

Main Issues 

3. These are the effects of the proposed development on (a) the character and appearance 
of the area, with particular regard to the setting of a listed building; and (b) the living 
conditions of the occupiers of Rose Cottage, having particular regard to light and outlook. 

Reasons 

Character and appearance 

4. The appeal site relates to a Grade II listed building, comprising of an attractive and well 
preserved late Georgian Villa. It is set within a large and mature landscaped garden 
generally free from built form. Its garden is to the front and to the side of the dwelling and 
has mature trees and vegetation separating different parts of the garden. To the east of 
the site is the adjacent dwelling Rose Cottage, which is separated from the appeal site by 
a stone boundary wall.  The section of the appeal site where the proposed development 

Page 45

Agenda Item 5a



Ref: CAS-03086-Z4Z3Z7 

2 

would be located is at a higher level than the listed building, due to the sloping nature of 
the site.   

5. The proposed development would have a tall pitched roof with high eaves, to 
accommodate a large craft room above the double garage which would be partly within 
the roof space.  It would be a wide building with a long length and this in combination with 
its height would result in an outbuilding of a significant scale and bulk.  Whilst there are 
other two storey properties in the vicinity, most notably Rose Cottage and the modern 
houses to the west, these lie distinctly outside the curtilage of the listed building and as 
such do not inform its immediate setting.  The proposal’s glazed apex, glazed doors and 
projecting balcony on the front elevation, together with the galvanised metal staircase 
and flat roof dormers, would result in a large outbuilding with a modern appearance which 
would be at odds with the traditional Georgian characteristics of the listed building. This 
would exacerbate the visual dominance of the proposed building.  Consequently, the 
proposal would be an unsympathetic and incongruous outbuilding in its setting. 

6. Although the mature vegetation adjacent to the proposed garage would partly screen the 
proposal from some viewpoints within the garden, it would still be viewed in the context of 
the principal elevation of the listed building, particularly when viewed from the south 
western entrance to the driveway. Given its elevated position forward of the listed 
building, and despite it being partially set within the rising ground levels, the proposal 
would result in a dominant and incongruous outbuilding which would intrude on the 
setting of the listed building and would visually compete with it. This would significantly 
detract from the attractive verdant setting of the Georgian building and would erode its 
special character.  

7. Although the proposal would not be visually prominent from wider views outside of the 
site, this does not mitigate the localised impacts I have identified to the setting of the 
listed building and does not warrant permitting such effects given the statutory duty to 
have special regard to the desirability of preserving the setting of the listed building.    

8. For the above reasons, I conclude that the proposed development would cause 
significant harm to the character and appearance of the area and would fail to preserve 
the setting of the listed building. This would be contrary to criterion (c) of policy DES1 of 
the Monmouthshire County Council Adopted Local Development Plan (LDP) which seeks 
to ensure, amongst other things, that development proposals respect the existing form, 
scale, siting, massing, materials and layout of its setting and any neighbouring quality 
buildings. 

Living conditions 

9. Rose Cottage is located on the shared boundary of the appeal site and its rear elevation 
faces towards the proposed building.  There are two windows in its rear elevation, a first 
floor landing window and a ground floor window which has been blocked up internally.  

10. As the first floor window serves the landing of Rose Cottage, a non-habitable room, and 
bearing in mind the proposal would be set off the boundary, any impacts on outlook 
would be minor.  Although it is argued that the ground floor window could be reinstated, it 
does not currently contribute to the existing light levels or outlook from the lounge which it 
serves.  In any event, this room benefits from sufficient light and outlook from the existing 
front window and bi-folding doors to the side.  The proposal would not therefore result in 
any harmful overbearing impacts.   

11. For the above reasons, I conclude that proposal would not harm the living conditions of 
the occupiers of Rose Cottage, and would comply with criterion (d) of policy DES1 of the 
LDP. 

Page 46



Ref: CAS-03086-Z4Z3Z7 

3 

Conclusion 

12. Although I have concluded that the proposal is acceptable in regard to the living 
conditions of the occupiers of Rose Cottage, this does not outweigh my findings on 
character and appearance and the setting of the listed building, which are overriding 
considerations. For the reasons set out above, and having regard to all matters raised, 
the appeal is dismissed. 

13. In reaching my decision, I have taken into account the requirements of sections 3 and 5 
of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. I consider that this decision is 
in accordance with the Act’s sustainable development principle through its contribution 
towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers’ well-being objectives. 

  

H Smith 

INSPECTOR 

  

  

  

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cadarnhau cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol.
	4a Cais DM/2020/00400 - Adeiladu trac beicio ffordd caeedig 1 cilomedr, mynediad i gerbydau a maes parcio. Tir ger y Cae Rasys, Fferm a Gorsaf Drosglwyddo Gwastraff Llan-ffwyst, Y Fenni NP7 9LQ.
	4b Cais DM/2023/01329 - Caniatawyd newid Defnydd Glebe Bungalow i dŷ annedd C3 o Randy Gwyliau ar osod a ganiatawyd dan DC/2007/00778 a DC/2017/01200. Glebe Bungalow, Heol Ysgol Llandeilo, Llandeilo Bertholau, Y Fenni, NP7 6NU.
	5a The Cedars, Lôn y Capel, Pwllmeurig.

